
 

The mission of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority is to provide safe, secure, efficient and low-cost air 

transportation service to the 12-county region that Syracuse Hancock International Airport currently serves.  The 

Authority seeks to stimulate air service, economic development, trade and tourism by focusing on the shared goals 

of its stakeholders:  more service to more destinations, lower operating costs and increased non-aeronautical 

revenue. The Authority recognizes that the Syracuse Hancock International Airport is a gateway to the central New 

York region and beyond and seeks to optimize customer service and exceed customer expectations with continuous 

improvements to the terminal building and public-use facilities. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 

Regular Meeting Agenda 

Friday, May 12, 2017, 11:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 

Syracuse Hancock International Airport 

Board Room 

 

1. Roll Call (2 Minutes) 

 

2. Reading and Approval of Minutes from the April 7, 2017 Regular Meeting (2 Min) 

 

3. New Business Part I (25 Minutes) 

 

A. Present FY2017/18 Operating Budget 

 

B. Present FY2017/18 Capital Budget  

 

C. Update on Terminal Improvement Project 

 

4. Old Business (35 Minutes) 

 

 2017 Financial Disclosure Form 

 Executive Session 

 

5. New Business Part II (10 Minutes) 

 

A. Resolutions 

 

 Resolution Accepting Management’s Recommendation to accept findings of the draft PLA 

Study and negotiate and execute a Project Labor Agreement for the Terminal Improvement 

Project (draft PLA in Packet) 

 

 Resolution Authorizing Executive Director to Acknowledge Authority’s Responsibility to 

Contribute to Public Works Enforcement Fund and Make Necessary Contributions 

(supporting documents in Packet) 

 

 



 

The mission of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority is to provide safe, secure, efficient and low-cost air 

transportation service to the 12-county region that Syracuse Hancock International Airport currently serves.  The 

Authority seeks to stimulate air service, economic development, trade and tourism by focusing on the shared goals 

of its stakeholders:  more service to more destinations, lower operating costs and increased non-aeronautical 

revenue. The Authority recognizes that the Syracuse Hancock International Airport is a gateway to the central New 

York region and beyond and seeks to optimize customer service and exceed customer expectations with continuous 

improvements to the terminal building and public-use facilities. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 Resolution Authorizing Executive Director to Execute Contract to Provide Security 

Personnel Services with Securitas Critical Infrastructure Services, Inc. 

 

 Resolution Creating the Position of Director of Airport Security (Job Description in Packet) 

 

 Resolution Approving Reimbursement of Airport Operating Expenses of the City of 

Syracuse and Authorizing Payment of Reimbursement Amounts to City of Syracuse 

(Existing Agreement in Packet) 

 

 Resolution Authorizing the Addition of a Sergeant Position to exhibit A of the Services 

Agreement with the City of Syracuse (Existing Agreement in Packet)  

 

6. Management Report (15 Minutes) 

 

7. Committee Reports (10 Minutes) 

 Terminal Improvement Project Ad Hoc Committee 

 Finance 

 

8. Adjournment 

 

 



 

1 
 

 
 

 

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 

April 7, 2017 

 

Pursuant to notice duly given and posted, the regular meeting of the Syracuse Regional Airport 

Authority was called to order on Friday, April 7, 2017@ 12:13 p.m. in the Syracuse Regional 

Airport Authority Board Room located in the Syracuse Hancock International Airport by Chair, 

Mr. Patrick Mannion.  

 

Members Present:                                    Members Absent: 

Mr. Patrick Mannion – Chair    Dr. Donna DeSiato 

Mr. William Fisher      Mr. Michael Quill   

Ms. Beth Rougeux     Dr. Shiu-Kai Chin 

Mr. John B. Johnson Jr.    

Mr. Mark Venesky     

Mr. Khalid Bey  

Mr. William Simmons 

Mr. Michael Lazar    

      

Also Present: 

 

Ms. Christina Callahan    

Mr. Trent Amond     

Ms. Patty Jeschke    

Ms. Linda Ryan       

Mr. R. John Clark 

Ms. Jennifer Sweetland 

Mr. Brian Dorman 

Ms. Cheryl Herzog 

 

 

Roll Call 

As noted, all Board members were present, except for Dr. Donna DeSiato, Mr. Michael Quill, 

and Dr. Shiu-Kai Chin 

 

Reading and Approval of the Minutes: 

 

Chair Mannion asked if anyone had any questions/comments on minutes. 

Ms. Rougeux asked if minutes were revised to reflect her nay vote on the security company.  Ms. 

Jeschke stated they were.   

 

A motion was made by Mr. Johnson and seconded by Ms. Beth Rougeux and was unanimously 

approved to accept the minutes from the March 10, 2017 meeting. 

 

The motion was approved 8 ayes, 0 nays 



 

2 
 

 

New Business: 

Ms. Callahan shared that we have been working with C & S on the preliminary schedule of 

construction so the Terminal Improvement project will be completed by fall of 2018.  She has 

invited C & S to present that schedule to you. 

Presentation by John Trimble, President of C & S:   Mr. Trimble thanked the Authority for 

having trust in them to work on the project.  He introduced the key employees that will manage 

the project.  Brian Dorman of SRAA, Tom Horth of C & S will be Program Manager - he will 

work with FAA, State and Authority.  Michael LaMontagne of C & S will lead the Production 

Design Team.  Mr. Trimble discussed the N & S Concourse project.   Mr. Fisher asked where the 

concourse project physically would begin & end.  Mr. Dorman explained it would be from the 

end of concourse up to the portals. 

Mr. Trimble shared they are going to accelerate the terminal canopy demolition.  Construction 

should be complete by early September.  They are in design process and also figuring out how 

traffic will continue to flow to keep things running as smoothly as possible.   

Mr. Trimble then discussed the overall big project.   He stated originally when the study was 

complete, there was an 80 million dollar plus project.  C & S then recalibrated and submitted the 

application for the State money.  C & S is now working with Authority to reconcile scope and 

budget to fit the new cost/project.   Full design should be complete by early/mid November.  

Construction will be complete by deadline the Governor set – October 31, 2018.     

Mr. Trimble addressed the garage situation.  This will run parallel with project.  They have a 

separate team to address the measures that need to take place.  It will be handled in phases as in 

past.   The design phase will be complete this summer with construction being complete by mid 

next year.  There are more discussions that need to take place with Brian, Christina and 

Authority.   Some discussion has taken place to work on the façade of garage to tie in to the 

terminal project – it will depend on budget. 

Mr. Fisher wanted to be sure that C & S keeps in mind that whatever the State said would be 

complete that it is part of plan to be complete or worked out with State.  Christina explained the 

conversations that she has had with State regarding museum display.   

Mr. Clark asked if the State is requiring a minimum output from the solar panels – are they going 

to be token Solar Panels or are they going to contribute electricity to airport.  Mr. Trimble said it 

came up with not a lot of discussion.  Ms. Callahan shared that it was one of the elements of 

sustainability in the project.  There is preliminary work that needs to be done – for ex. A glare 

analysis.    Mr. Trimble thinks the Rainwater Harvesting from previous project and tying into 

that may suffice. 

Ms. Rougeux mentioned a professor at RPI that is very well known for a special glass used for 

Center of Excellence Building. They may have something that is commercially available now to 

use.  Mr. Trimble stated they would look into that.   

 



 

3 
 

 

 

Mr. Fisher asked if the Ad-Hoc Committee is operating yet.  Mr. Mannion/Ms. Callahan told him 

they are meeting after the Board meeting today to get set up.   Mr. Fisher, Mr. Robb, Mr. 

Mannion, Dr. Chin and Mr. Lazar are on the committee. 

Mr. Mannion reminded everyone the Financial Disclosures are due by the end of May.  He 

suggested the sooner the better 

Executive Session:   The members in attendance went in to Executive Session to discuss 

proposed, pending or current litigation; financial credit and employment history of a particular 

person or corporations by the Authority.  It was noted that no formal action would be taken 

during the Executive Session.  The motion was made by Mr. Bey and seconded by Mr. Johnson.  

It was unanimously approved.  Board members, Ms. Callahan, Mr. Amond, Mr. Carni and Mr. R. 

John Clark went into executive session at 12:44 p.m.    

Executive session ended at 1:35 p.m.   Motion was moved by Ms. Rougeux and seconded by Mr. 

Lazar.  No action was taken. 

 

Committee Reports:   There are three committee reports in packet:   Finance (2/3/17), Human 

Resource (2/16/17) and Audit (3/2/17)  
 

Adjournment 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Venesky and seconded by Mr. Lazar to adjourn the meeting.  

The motion was approved:  8 ayes, 0 nays  

The meeting was adjourned at 1:47 p.m. 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



Syracuse Regional Airport Authority

Operating Budget Summary

5/4/2017, 1:43 PM

| | Proposed

| 2016/17 2016/17-02/17 2016/17 $ Var. - Prj. $ Var.  - Prj. | 2017/18 $ Variance % Var $ Variance % Var

| Bdgt YTD Prj. From Budget From YTD | Budget 16/17 Bdgt 16/17 Bdgt 04/17 Prj. 04/17 Prj.

| |

REVENUE | |

Aviation | 12,967,700    8,696,600      12,855,600    (112,100)       4,159,000        | 13,571,800    604,100         4.7% 716,200         5.6%

  075A, 080A | |

| |

Services at Net | 7,748,500      6,797,600      7,764,400      15,900          966,800           | 7,211,100      (537,400)        -6.9% (553,300)        -7.1%

  090, 091 | |

| |

Other Operating | 4,088,300      2,632,300      3,995,300      (93,000)         1,363,000        | 3,945,300      (143,000)        -3.5% (50,000)          -1.3%

  092 | |

| |

TOTAL REVENUE | 24,804,500    18,126,500    24,615,300    (189,200)       6,488,800        | 24,728,200    (76,300)          -0.3% 112,900         0.5%

| |

| |

EXPENSE | |

Airfield Ops & Maint | 5,557,300      3,288,400      5,664,900      107,600        2,376,500        | 5,640,200      82,900           1.5% (24,700)          -0.4%

  070, 075B | |

| |

Terminal | 7,225,200      3,262,600      6,489,200      (736,000)       3,226,600        | 7,267,400      42,200           0.6% 778,200         12.0%

  080B, 085 | |

| |

Support | 11,502,900    7,012,300      10,077,800    (1,425,100)    3,065,500        | 11,393,900    (109,000)        -0.9% 1,316,100      13.1%

  005 - 060 | |

| |

Non-Operating | 519,100         -                 2,383,400      1,864,300     2,383,400        | 426,600         (92,500)          -17.8% (1,956,800)     -82.1%

  065 | |

| |

TOTAL EXPENSE | 24,804,500    13,563,300    24,615,300    (189,200)       11,052,000      | 24,728,100    (76,400)          -0.3% 112,800         0.5%

| |

| |

Surplus/(Deficit) | -                 4,563,200      -                 -                (4,563,200)       | 100                100                100                0                    

U:\Excldata\Budget\2017-18\TRA - SRAA 2017-18, Budget and Rates & Charges, v3.0, draft, Budget Summary (2) p. 1 of 1



Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 5/5/2017, 10:34 AM

Proposed Capital Budget, May 12, 2016

Status as of: Draft

ACIP Funded Projects 90% 5%

2017/18 Cost Total AIP NYS Local Share Grant/

Year Center Project Description Cost* Share Share PRRSM Discretionary Restricted Status

Airfield Rehab Deicing Fluid Collection Facility (Design)) 550,000           495,000           27,500             27,500             

Terminal TIP Phase I (Canopy) 4,167,000       3,750,300       208,350           208,350           

Terminal S. Concourse Bathrooms (Design & Construct) 1,325,000       1,192,500       66,250             66,250             

Terminal Passenger Jet Bridge (20) Phase II 1,400,000       1,260,000       70,000             70,000             

Sub-total ACIP 7,442,000       6,697,800       372,100           372,100           -                    -                    

Local Projects 90% 5%

2017/18 Cost Total AIP NYS Local Funding Source Grant/

Year Center Project Description Cost Share Share PRRSM Discretionary Restricted Status

Airfield ARFF Officer Vehicle 100,000           100,000           

Airfield Rotary Mower (2) 50,000             50,000             

Airfield Main Road Plow 225,000           225,000           

Airfield Wheel Loader 145,000           145,000           

Airfield Large-are Mower (Fine Cut) 120,000           120,000           

Airfield Small Mowers (2) 60,000             60,000             

Airfield Floor Scrubber 55,000             55,000             

Airfield Painting Equipment 46,100             46,100             

Terminal N. Concourse Roof Repairs 300,000           300,000           

Terminal S. Concourse Lower Windows, Phase 1 83,000             83,000             

Terminal Intl. Gate to include CBP (design only) 250,000           250,000           

SRAA Engineer Field Vehicle 50,000             50,000             

SRAA Shuttle Bus 140,000           140,000           

SRAA Asphalt Paving Repair 250,000           250,000           

SRAA Parking Garage Center Elevator 125,000           125,000           

SRAA Parking Garage - Required Repairs 250,000           250,000           

Sub-total Local 2,249,100       -                    -                    1,454,100       495,000           300,000           

Additional Projects 90% 5%

2017/18 Cost Total AIP NYS Local Funding Source Grant/

Year Center Project Description Cost Share Share PRRSM Discretionary Restricted Status

SRAA Debt Service 418,600           418,600           

Sub-total Additional 418,600           -                    -                    418,600           -                    -                    

GRAND TOTAL 10,109,700     6,697,800       372,100           2,244,800       495,000           300,000           

* To be approved plus 20% to "accommodate change orders and other routine construction and contract administration matters."

U:\Excldata\Budget\2017-18\Capital Improvement Program, Capital Bdgt, 2017-18 p. 1 of 1

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



{H3063175.1}  

Resolution No. ___   2017 

 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING MANAGEMENTS RECOMMENDATION TO 

NEGOTIATE A PROJECT LABOR AGREEMENT FOR THE 2017 TERMINAL 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the "Authority") is a public 

benefit corporation, formed and operating pursuant to Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York 

2011 and Article 8, Title 34 of the New York Public Authorities Law, as amended (collectively 

the "Enabling Act"); and 

WHEREAS, Section 2799-ggg (11) of the Enabling Act authorizes the Authority to enter 

into contracts, agreements and leases with the federal government, the state, the county, the city, 

any person or other public corporation and to execute all instruments necessary or convenient to 

accomplishing its corporate purposes which include the development, expansion, maintenance 

and operation of aviation facilities in Central New York in general and the Syracuse Hancock 

International Airport (“Airport”) in particular; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has been identified as a recipient of an approximately $35.8 

million grant from the State of New York (the “Grant”) under its Upstate Airport Economic 

Development and Revitalization Program (“Airport Revitalization Program”) for the renovation 

of the terminal at Syracuse Hancock International Airport (the "2017 Terminal Improvement 

Project" or “Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority Board, by Resolution 8 of 2017 previously authorized the 

Executive Director to execute an Aviation Project Funding Agreement in order to fund and 

implement the 2017 Terminal Improvement Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Enabling Act requires the Authority to obtain the approval of the City of 

Syracuse for Airport projects in excess of $10 Million and in obtaining the City’s approval of the 



{H3063175.1}  

Project, the Common Council of the City recommended that the Authority investigate the 

potential benefits of utilizing a project labor agreement (“PLA”) in connection with the Project; 

and 

WHEREAS, Authority management commissioned a PLA study by Seeler Engineering, 

P.C. to determine whether a PLA would be beneficial to the Project, and Seeler in a draft PLA study 

determined that a PLA could have a significant beneficial impact on the project and potentially 

result in a Project cost savings of approximately $2.69 Million, and Authority management has 

recommended that the Board authorize the negotiation of a PLA for the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Board has reviewed the draft PLA study and considered its potential 

impacts on the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, after due deliberation having been had thereon, it is hereby 

RESOLVED, by the Board of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority that the Board 

hereby accepts the recommendations of the draft PLA study and that the Executive Director is 

authorized, with the advice of counsel, to seek to negotiate a Project Labor Agreement concerning 

the Project, and in the event such negotiations are successful and upon the further advice of counsel, 

to enter into a Project Labor Agreement for the 2017 Terminal Improvement Project. 

 Resolution Adopted Date: May __, 2017. 

Vote: Ayes         Nays:           Abstentions:         . 

Signed:                                    ___                                     . 

   Secretary 

 

 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



 

Draft Report 
Project Labor Agreement 

Benefits Analysis  
 
 
 

Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 
Syracuse International Airport Terminal 

Improvement Project Phase 3 Through 11 
Syracuse, New York 

 

 

 

  

   
April 14, 2017 

 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C. 
 

  



 

Draft Report 
Project Labor Agreement 

Benefits Analysis  
 
 
 

Syracuse Regional Airport Authority 
Syracuse International Airport Terminal 

Improvement Project Phase 3 Through 11 
Syracuse, New York 

 
  

    

 

April 14, 2017 
 

  

  
Prepared By 

Seeler Engineering, P.C. 
1151 Pittsford-Victor Road 

Suite 125 
Pittsford, New York 14534 

585-248-9520 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C. I 

 

Contents 

Section 1 Executive Summary ................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Background ...................................................................................................................................................................1 

1.2 The Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project .............................................................................2 

1.3 Our Study ......................................................................................................................................................................2 

1.4 Summary .......................................................................................................................................................................2 

Section 2 Project Description .................................................................................... 4 

2.1 Scope .............................................................................................................................................................................4 

2.2 Schedule ........................................................................................................................................................................5 

2.3 Construction Costs ........................................................................................................................................................5 

Section 3 Estimate of Craft Labor Needs ................................................................ 6 

3.1 Craft Labor Breakdown .................................................................................................................................................6 

3.2 Projected Labor Costs ...................................................................................................................................................6 

Section 4 Summary of Existing Agreements ........................................................ 7 

4.1 Existing Agreements .....................................................................................................................................................7 

4.2 Labor Unrest .................................................................................................................................................................9 

Section 5 Economic Considerations ..................................................................... 10 

5.1 General ........................................................................................................................................................................ 10 

5.2 Labor Cost Savings Attributed to the Use of a PLA ................................................................................................... 10 

5.3 Other Economic Savings Attributable to a PLA.......................................................................................................... 13 

5.4 Summary ..................................................................................................................................................................... 13 

Section 6 Additional Considerations ................................................................... 14 

6.1 Labor Stability ............................................................................................................................................................. 14 

6.2 The “Tag Along Provision” ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

6.3 Workforce Enhancement, Recruiting & Training Programs, and M/WBE Programs ................................................. 14 

 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C. II 

 

Tables  
Table 1 Labor Unions Representing the Construction Industry in Onondaga Counties 
Table 2   Work Area Labor Hours and Cost Breakdown 
Table 3   Key Features of Existing Labor Agreements 

 
Appendices 

Appendix A  Project Schedule 
Appendix B Project Cost Estimate 
Appendix C Detailed Cost Savings Calculation 
 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C. 1 

 

Section 1 Executive Summary 
1.1 Background 
Project Labor Agreements, which have been utilized in the private sector for many years, are a recognized 
tool for assisting in cost effective and timely completion of major construction projects.  They serve these 
objectives by providing uniform working conditions, cost savings, a stable labor environment, and 
comprehensive protection against work disruptions arising out of labor disputes.   

In March of 1993, the U.S. Supreme Court held that a governmental entity, when it is acting in its 
proprietary capacity as owner or manager of property and is participating in the construction industry 
marketplace much as a private employer, can utilize a PLA without conflicting with federal law.  On 
March 28, 1996 the New York Court of Appeals approved, under State Law, the use of PLAs on publicly 
owned projects.  In that case, which involved the repair and refurbishing of the Tappan Zee Bridge, the 
Court emphasized the need for the PLA to foster one or both of the dual purposes underlying the State’s 
various competitive bidding laws: (1) protecting public fisc and (2) avoiding favoritism, fraud or 
corruption.  See New York State Chapter, Inc. v. New York State Thruway Auth., 88 N.Y.2d 56, 643 
N.Y.S.2d 480 (1996) (sometimes referred to as the “Tappan Zee” case).  The importance of potential cost 
savings to the public through the use of a PLA was emphasized by the Court’s rejection of a PLA in a 
companion case, involving the Roswell Park Cancer Institute in Buffalo.  There, in the absence of 
sufficient evidence that the Dormitory Authority approved the use of the PLA as a cost saving device, the 
use of a PLA was struck down by the Court.  

As set forth in Section 222 of New York State Labor Law, a state agency or any political subdivision 
thereof having jurisdiction over a public work may require a contractor to enter into a project labor 
agreement when the agency determines that its interest is best met with application of a PLA that: 

1) obtains the best work at the lowest price in the construction process; 

2) prevents favoritism, fraud and corruption; and 

3) is based on such other factors as the impact of delays, the possibility of cost savings 
advantages and history of labor unrest in the area. 

The Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (Airport Authority) is in the process of implementation of a 
Design-Bid-Build project for the Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project Phase 3 
through 11 (the “Project”). The total project construction cost is estimated to be approximately $43.6 
million. Based upon the scope and schedule for this project and consistent with the New York State Labor 
Law Section 222, the Airport Authority is considering the use of a PLA. 

To investigate the use of a PLA, the Airport Authority retained Seeler Engineering, P.C. (Seeler), an 
independent consultant experienced in the development and implementation of PLAs, to conduct a 
thorough analysis of the costs/benefits of a PLA.  A PLA has not yet been negotiated for this project. As 
such, in preparing this report Seeler evaluated the key aspects of the project scope to assess areas of 
potential costs/benefits against PLA terms and conditions which have been successfully negotiated in 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  2 

previous agreements.   

1.2 The Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project  
The Project involves the renovations of the original terminal building of the Syracuse International 
Airport constructed in 1962. The terminal, as it exists today, is functional and well-operated, however, it 
features outdated designs, layouts, materials and aesthetics. The project’s focus will be to introduce an 
open glass façade, curbside improvements, and provide more openness to travelers. Additionally, an 
interior passenger bridge at the façade will improve movement between the parking garage and the 
terminal, as well as unify the entire main concourse. The project is currently divided into eleven phases 
for purposes of scoping. Multiple construction contracts are anticipated; however packaging of individual 
phases into bid packages has not yet been finalized. The various phases are: 

Phase Description 
3 Terminal Building Roof Replacement 
4 Terminal Building Façade Improvements 
5 Terminal Building Canopy 
6 Installation of Photovoltaic Panels 
7 Renovation of Terminal Building Grand Hall 
8 Upgrades to Airline Ticket Counters 
9 Renovation of Terminal Building Main Lobby Restrooms 

10 Renovation of Ticketing and Baggage Hall Areas 
11 Terminal Entrance Roadway Improvements 

Undefined Terminal Security Upgrades (Hardware & Software) 
 

1.3 Our Study 
This study includes an assessment of the economic and non-economic considerations of a PLA.  To assess 
economic considerations, Seeler Engineering, P.C. developed a comparative analysis of the existing 
applicable area collective bargaining agreements for thirteen (13) labor craft unions (with fourteen (14) 
agreements) that would govern construction on the Project in the absence of a PLA.  The intent of the 
review was to identify areas for improvement through the use of the proposed PLA that could reduce the 
Project’s total labor cost.  

Given the nature and size of this Project, and the make-up of the market, even in the absence of a PLA we 
would expect, on a dollar basis, a minimum of approximately 50 percent of the successful contractors and 
sub-contractors to be unionized contractors covered by one or more of the applicable collective 
bargaining agreements (CBAs). These projections are based upon the author’s review of projects recently 
executed in this region and an understanding of construction labor supply and demand in the Central New 
York Region, the size of the project, the nature and makeup of contractors in the region who routinely 
execute projects of this nature, and previous projects constructed both with and without PLAs in the 
Central New York Region.  

1.4 Summary  
We estimate that using a PLA would result in savings of $263,300 or approximately 3.1 percent of the 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  3 

Item # Cost Savings
Total

Savings
1 Flexible Shift Start Times 11,300$           
2 Productivity Gain 10 Hour Days 9,900$             
3 Industry Funds 2,600$             
4 Apprentice Ratios 17,600$           
5 Non Union Apprentices 78,200$           
6 Guaranteed Pay 6,700$             
7 No Holiday Pay 8,400$             
8 Management Rights 97,000$           
9 Shift Work 19,700$           
10 Offsite Fabrication 11,900$           

Total Savings 263,300$        
Total Construction Cost 43,587,878$     

Total Labor Cost 8,481,891$       
Total Savings Percentage 3.1%

projected cost of labor for the Project (estimated at $8,481,891).  Cost savings attributed to each potential 
change in current collective bargaining agreements (CBAs) are presented below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

While not directly related to labor cost reductions, the ability to avoid application of the Wicks Law to the 
project could result in significant project cost reduction through increased efficiency in coordination. We 
anticipate that the benefits of Wicks avoidance are definable and can be applied to Phases 6 through 10. 
The avoidance of Wicks law could amount to savings of approximately $2 Million. We estimate, 
therefore, that total savings could exceed $2,280,000 million for a total project cost of $43.6 Million, 
which is approximately a 5.2% savings.  

PLAs can benefit projects with very challenging schedules by permitting flexibility in work scheduling 
and shift times to potentially increase productivity. The anticipated schedule is aggressive.  Management 
of multiple construction contracts to meet scheduled deadlines will present a significant management 
challenge which could be aided by PLA implementation. Other benefits not easily translated into 
economic savings include enhancing workforce diversity and training objectives.  No extraordinary 
project specific objectives focused on workforce diversity have been established.   No extraordinary 
recruitment and training objectives have been established either.  Enhanced language regarding workforce 
diversity, often incorporated into PLAs, would not, therefore, offer significant benefit to this project.  
Enhanced language regarding recruitment and training, also often incorporated into PLAs would also not 
offer significant benefit to the project except for providing access to qualified apprentices to those 
contractors who would otherwise not have access.  These aspects of the project are, therefore, non-factors 
for this study.  Impacts of apprentice availability are discussed further in the cost savings section of this 
report.  



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  4 

Section 2 
Project Description 

2.1 Scope 
The Project involves the renovations of the original terminal building of the Syracuse International 
Airport constructed in 1962. The terminal, as it exists today, is functional and well-operated, however, it 
features outdated designs, layouts, materials and aesthetics. The project’s focus will be to introduce an 
open glass façade, curbside improvements, and provide more openness to travelers. Additionally, an 
interior passenger bridge at the façade will improve movement between the parking garage and the 
terminal, as well as unify the entire main concourse. The project has been broken down into Phases 3 
through 11 plus an undefined phase. The description of each phase is as follows: 

Phase 3 – Terminal Building Roof Replacement 

This phase generally includes removal of the existing 25,000 sq.ft. sawtooth-type roof over the center 
lobby, and replacement with a new roof system that accommodates the proposed fascia modifications.  

Phase 4 – Terminal Building Façade Improvements 

This phase generally includes the comprehensive renovations to the building façade. 

Phase 5 – Terminal Building Canopy 

This phase generally includes construction of a new curbside canopy for passenger drop-off and pick-up, 
along with construction of a new overhead canopy system.  

Phase 6 – Installation of Photovoltaic Panels 

This phase generally includes procurement and installation of new photovoltaic panels on the terminal 
building.  

Phase 7 – Renovation of Terminal Building Grand Hall 

This phase generally includes renovations to the center lobby area of the terminal. Anticipated work 
includes the replacement of the flooring and seating.  

Phase 8 – Upgrades to Airline Ticketing Counters 

This phase generally includes replacement of the existing ticketing counters and the installation of new 
self-serving ticketing kiosks.  

Phase 9 – Renovation of Terminal Building Main Lobby Restrooms 

This phase generally includes complete renovations to the two original restrooms located within the first 
floor of the terminal building.  



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  5 

Phase 10 – Renovation of Ticketing and Baggage Hall Areas 

This phase generally includes renovations to the ticketing and baggage claim areas of the terminal. 
Anticipated work includes the replacement of the flooring and seating.  

Phase 11 – Terminal Entrance Roadway Improvements 

This phase generally includes the rehabilitation of a portion of the entrance roadway to the main entrance 
of the terminal building. The work is anticipated to include pavement rehabilitation, pavement markings, 
and new wayfinding signage. . 

Undefined Phase - Terminal Security Upgrades (Hardware & Software) 

This undefined phase generally includes upgrades to the hardware and software security ot the main 
terminal building.  

2.2 Schedule 
A preliminary construction schedule has been established for the Project and is included as Appendix A.  
Phase III of the project is scheduled to start in March of 2018. The remaining phases are all scheduled for 
a start in early 2018 as well. The overall project construction duration is projected to be eight (8) months.  
The eight (8) month scheduled contract period, allows construction to proceed with only one (1) summer 
season for construction. All construction work is projected to be completed by October 30, 2018. 

A decision on the packaging of the individual Phases into construction contracts has not yet been 
finalized.  The intention is to minimize the number of construction contracts thus minimizing potential 
coordination issues with such a compressed schedule however, several contracts are anticipated. Given 
the compressed schedule for all phases to be completed, scheduling and allocation of resources will be 
important factors in efficient execution of the project.   

2.3 Construction Costs 
A preliminary construction contract cost estimate has been prepared by the Project Team. A copy of the 
estimate is included in Appendix B. Total construction cost is estimated at $43.6 million in 2017 dollars. 
It is anticipated that the project will be completed using multiple prime contract packages. 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  6 

Section 3 
Estimate of Craft Labor Needs 

3.1 Craft Labor Breakdown 
Seventeen craft labor unions would represent the construction industry in the region.  A complete listing 
of the unions is presented on Table 1.  Of this number, thirteen (13) craft labor unions (with fourteen (14) 
agreements) would have active involvement in the work planned for the Project.  Those craft unions are 
Bricklayers, Carpenters, Electrical Workers, Elevator Workers, Glaziers, Heat & Frost Insulators, Iron 
Workers, Laborers, Operating Engineers (2 agreements), Painters, Plumbers & Steamfitters, Roofers, and 
Sheet Metal Workers. All work is subject to Building agreements for those trades where a separate 
agreement for Building work has been established.  

Table 2 includes work area labor breakdowns for the Project.  This analysis estimates that approximately 
167,528 craft labor hours will be required to complete construction work for the Project. Demand for craft 
labor will be immediate upon initiation of the construction activities.  Even in the absence of a PLA, 
given the history of award of projects of a similar nature in the region, we would expect, on a dollar basis, 
a minimum of approximately 50 percent of the project contractors/subcontractors to be unionized 
contractors covered by one or more of the craft labor agreements.  This projection is based upon the 
author’s in-depth knowledge of construction labor supply and demand in the Central New York Region, 
the size of the project, the nature and makeup of contractors in the region who routinely execute projects 
of this nature, and previous construction projects constructed under PLAs in the Central New York 
Region. For a project of this size we would not expect to see a significant number of new 
contractors/subcontractors from outside the Central New York Region.  

As such, this report evaluates one potential scenario; the scenario where approximately 50 percent of the 
project is executed by unionized contractors. 

3.2 Projected Labor Costs 
Utilizing applicable journeyman wage and benefit rates, Seeler projected labor costs for the Project.  The 
projected craft labor cost for the Project is estimated at $8,481,891 or 20 percent of the anticipated 
construction cost, with the actual percentage varying on individual components from 20 to 45 percent. 

 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  7 

Section 4 
Summary of Existing Agreements 

4.1 Existing Agreements 
Seeler Engineering, P.C. has developed a comparative analysis of the thirteen (13) applicable crafts (with 
fourteen (14) agreements).  These thirteen (13) crafts, covered by fourteen (14) individual agreements are; 
Bricklayers, Carpenters, Electrical Workers, Elevator Workers, Glaziers, Heat & Frost Insulators, Iron 
Workers, Laborers, Operating Engineers (2 agreements), Painters, Plumbers & Steamfitters, Roofers, and 
Sheet Metal Workers. All work is subject to Building agreements where a particular craft differentiates 
between Building work and Heavy & Highway.   Significant aspects of each of the fourteen (14) 
agreements are summarized on Table 3.  The intent of the review was to identify areas of improvement 
that could be achieved through the proposed PLA which could potentially result in a reduction of the 
labor cost for the Project.  A brief synopsis of the terms of the existing agreements is presented below. 

4.1.1 Contract Duration/Expiration Date 
Contract durations range from one to five years, with the majority of the agreements being three years 
in duration.  Five (5) of the fourteen (14) applicable agreements are set to expire during the planned 
contract period. These are: 

• Electrical Workers (5/31/2018) 
• Glaziers (4/30/2018) 
• Heat & Frost Insulators (4/30/2018) 
• Iron Workers (4/30/2018) 
• Laborers – Building (5/31/2018) 

4.1.2 Regular Work Hours/Regular Work Day 
Regular work hours/work day are not consistent between agreements.  Although all of the agreements 
standardize on a 5 day, 40 hour work week, some crafts allow 4 ten hour days as an alternative with 
consent of the union.  The majority of the agreements set normal work hours from 8 a.m. to noon and 
12:30 p.m. to 4:30 p.m. with an unpaid one-half hour for lunch.  Several unions do not state specific 
start and quitting times, but state that the hours must be consecutive with a ½ hour lunch.  Other 
unions specifically state that the starting and quitting times may be changed, but require notification 
to or mutual agreement of the union.  

4.1.3 Guaranteed Pay 
All of the agreements except Ironworkers and Heat & Frost Insulators require two or more hours pay 
for reporting in at their designated hourly rate.  Iron workers require $25 per hour for the first two 
hours if the employee shows up and no work is provided due to weather or other means not controlled 
by the employer.  Heat & Frost Insulators do not offer report-in pay, however, they do offer $50.00 in 
travel expenses. The detailed requirements vary. Some require the pay regardless.  Still others require 
additional compensation if weather conditions permit work, but no work is provided.  The Operating 
Engineers essentially guarantee a minimum of three full days of pay once the work week starts 
regardless of the hours actually worked.  In some instances these guaranties can be as much as 40 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  8 

hours. Most of the unions allow Saturdays as a make-up day for weather related delays at straight 
time.  

4.1.4 Shift Work 
Most agreements are essentially consistent in regards to shift work.  Most agreements shorten the 
hours worked for second and third shift (7.5 hours for second shift and 7 hours for the third shift) but 
require 8 hours of pay, when three shifts are worked. Some agreements carry an hourly differential as 
well, typically ranging from 10% to 25% for second and third shifts.  

4.1.5 Overtime 
Most agreements provide for time-and-one-half for overtime for weekdays and Saturdays.  For 
Sundays and holidays two-times base salary is typical.   

4.1.6 Holidays 
All unions except for Operating Engineers (Building and Technical) standardized on 6 unpaid 
holidays: Christmas, New Years, Thanksgiving, Labor Day, Memorial Day and Independence Day. 
Operating Engineers (Building) receive a paid day off if work were performed five days before and 
one day after their designated holidays. The Operating Engineers Technical agreement only requires 
work to be performed one day before and one day after their designated holiday to receive holiday 
pay.  

4.1.7 Apprentice Ratios 
The ratios vary and change with the number of Journeymen at the site.  For example, many unions 
allow the first Apprentice with the first Journeyman.  While one Apprentice usually is allowed 
initially, once staffing grows beyond a small labor force the following ratios have been established: 

 

 
4.1.8 Off-Site Fabrication 
Off-site fabrication rules vary from agreement to agreement.  Some do not address the issue at all.  
For example, electricians define certain work elements and require them to be union.  Several other 
crafts have similar language which could restrict flexibility in the use and selection of off-site 
fabricators.   

    4.1.9 Mileage and Parking 
Most of the agreements do not address mileage reimbursement. Electrical Workers require mileage 
reimbursement at the current IRS rate when traveling to and from multiple job sites within one work 
day. 

Journeyman/Apprentice Ratio Number of Agreements 
1/1 1 
2/1 2 
3/1 8 
3/2 1 
4/1 1 
5/1 1 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  9 

4.1.10 Management Rights 
Most of the existing agreements do not contain a “Management’s Rights” clause.  This means that 
they lack clear statements of the rights of management giving the contractor the assistance and/or 
flexibility required for necessary control and management of the Project work including control of the 
level of staffing and control/selection of key personnel such as the foreman. 

4.2 Labor Unrest 
In accordance with Section 222 of New York Labor Law, we reviewed the general labor climate in the 
Central/Western New York region over the last ten years.  Our review revealed a mixed picture. Unrest is 
evidenced by recent organizing activities in the service industries in Central and Western New York, 
threatening job actions in the manufacturing sector, and recent demonstrations by local construction 
trades at the MCC Rochester campus related to a proposed housing project.  As recently as February of 
2010, IAM Local 1555 employees went on strike for twenty-two (22) weeks in Westfield, New York, 
Chautauqua County. A strike, just settled several years ago, by Mott’s employees at the Williamson, New 
York facility is now the longest in the Company’s history lasting five months. Recently, demonstrations 
took place at the Muller Quaker Dairy project in Batavia over employment of out of town non-union 
workers. There is an ongoing dispute between the Capital Region construction trades and the Albany 
Hilton Hotel over use of non-union contractors. Union activism by the construction trades has most 
recently been demonstrated by their support for unions recently on strike at the Momentive Plant in 
Waterford, New York. The strike was recently settled after a fourth month walkout.  The construction 
trades refused to cross picket lines.  Demonstrations, including the use of visuals such as the inflatable rat, 
at other construction project sites have been noted and are expected to continues over the issue of 
employment of local union labor.  The region has not, however, experienced a strike of the construction 
trades in recent history. 

The 52-county Upstate New York region’s unemployment rate stood at 4.7 percent in November 2016, a 
decrease from 4.8 percent in November 2015.  However, despite the decrease in the unemployment rate, 
the New York State Department of Labor reported that the state’s labor force has decreased by 86,500 
between November 2015 and November 2016.  As demands on skilled labor increase, availability will 
decrease, making access to skilled workers through hiring halls and certified apprenticeship programs 
even more valuable, thus giving the union worker greater strength at the bargaining table. This, in turn, 
increases the potential for confrontation in local bargaining and labor disruption as local area bargaining 
agreements go through the negotiation process. There are approximately $2.1 Billion in construction 
projects planned or recently begun for a six (6) county area around Onondaga County including the 
ongoing State Fair Project, the I-690 Bridge Replacement, the Destiny USA Hotel, the Syracuse City 
School District Capital Improvement Project, the I-81 Replacement Project, the NYS Thruway 8 Bridge 
Replacement Project, and the I-90 Over Vine Street Bridge Replacement. Expenditures at the current 
level in the region would, however, not place unusual demand on available labor. 

Given the current economic and unemployment conditions we view the labor market in Central New 
York Region as tightening.  Project site demonstrations taking many forms, such as a bannering, hand 
billing, and picketing may become more common occurrences, however, strikes of any significant 
duration are not expected.  



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  10 

Section 5 
Economic Considerations 

5.1 General 
We conducted an analysis of potential cost savings for the Project utilizing the projected labor craft hours, 
wage rates currently in effect and contract provisions that would likely be included in a PLA.  Given the 
nature and size of this Project, and the make-up of the market, we would expect, on a dollar basis, even in 
the absence of a PLA, a minimum of 50 percent of the successful contractors and/or sub-contractors to be 
unionized contractors covered by one or more of the applicable agreements.  

These projections are based upon the author’s review of projects recently executed in this region and an 
understanding of construction labor supply and demand in the Central New York region, the size of the 
project, the nature and makeup of contractors in the region who routinely execute projects of this nature, 
and previous projects constructed under PLAs in Central New York. 

5.2 Labor Cost Savings Attributed to the Use of a PLA 
Labor cost savings projected for the project were prepared based upon contract provisions that have 
routinely been successfully negotiated and incorporated into PLAs implemented in the region, and there is 
therefore a reasonable assumption that such contract provisions would be included in any agreement 
executed for this project.  The potential for economic savings for each anticipated contract provision is 
discussed below. 

5.2.1 Flexible Start Times 
A PLA could provide for flexibility of the contractors/subcontractors to set start times between the 
hours of 6 a.m. and 9 a.m. and use special shift start and finish times to fit the needs of the 
assignment.  This would give the contractor flexibility to schedule the workday to maximize 
productivity.  Flexible hour schedules could accommodate for seasonal daylight, and after hours 
work, which would enhance productivity.  Increased productivity with the flexibility of start times is 
estimated to translate into approximately one hour per week per person productivity gained.  The 
maximum savings results from the implementation of flexible start times during the summer months 
(June, July and August) of the construction schedule is estimated to be approximately $11,300. 

5.2.2 Four Ten Hour Days 
A PLA could provide for additional flexibility in the regular work week by allowing a contractor to 
use a 4 - 10 hour day schedule or a regular day without requiring permission or consent form the 
union.  This would eliminate the setup and breakdown time for one work day each week.  Savings are 
estimated to be approximately one hour per week per person.  The maximum savings results from 
implementation of a 4 day, 10 hour schedule for the duration of Phase 11 (5 months). As this 
productivity gain is applicable to all workers at the site regardless of union affiliation the estimated 
maximum savings is projected to be $9,900. 

 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  11 

5.2.3 Industry Fund Payments 
A PLA could limit the workers’ pay to base wages and fringe benefit payments as published in the 
prevailing wage schedules. This, in turn, would avoid collectively bargained payments, such as 
Industry Promotion Funds, which are in excess of those required by/for public works projects. The 
local agreements provide for these projects have Industry Fund payments that range from $0.00 to 
$0.25, thus a savings of approximately $2,600 is anticipated through the elimination of these 
payments. 

5.2.4 Union Apprentice Ratio Apprentice Program Participation 
A PLA could agree to apprentice ratios equal to or better than those set by the New York State 
Department of Labor.  This translates to apprentice ratios of 3 to 1 or better.  By moving several of 
the crafts to this ratio, a reduction in labor cost would be realized. We have applied this projection 
only to union employers (50 percent of the project).  On this basis, it is estimated that this 
modification would result in a cost savings of $17,600.  

5.2.5 Non-Union Apprentice Program Participation 
A PLA could provide access to a qualified pool of apprentices for non-union contractors not 
otherwise available.  This provision would allow for non-union contractors (who do not have state 
approved apprentice programs) to obtain qualified apprentices, through the referral process, to lower 
overall crew labor cost. We have projected that crew sizes large enough to utilize apprentice rations to 
their fullest would represent approximately 33% of the projected non-union labor hours for all crafts. 
By providing access to contractors who would not otherwise be able to take advantage of apprentices, 
a PLA would result in savings of $78,200.  

5.2.6 Guaranteed Pay 
A PLA could eliminate guaranteed pay in its entirety and replace it with a travel allowance equivalent 
to one hour’s pay.  Standardizing on this provision for all trades results in an estimated savings 
projected to be $6,700. 

5.2.7 Holiday Pay 
A PLA could eliminate paid holidays in their entirety for the Operating Engineers (Building and 
Technical Agreements).  The estimated savings is projected to be $8,400.  

5.2.8 Management Rights/Jurisdictional Requirements 
A PLA could contain very strong Management Rights language. Management can realize distinct 
efficiencies by controlling the level of staffing, the scheduling of staffing, and the selection and 
employment of a Foreman as Contractor’s staff.  For large projects or complex projects with high 
labor loadings, savings of two percent of the labor costs from these clearly established management 
rights are typically realized.  For smaller projects or less complex projects with moderate schedules 
and less intense labor loadings, these advantages are reduced to 0.5 percent.   

Further adjustments are made to small projects when considering the effect of jurisdictional 
restrictions. In an open shop environment, workers would be allowed to perform the work of more 
than one trade over the work day.  While prevailing wage requirements would dictate that they must 
be compensated for the work of each trade in accordance with the applicable schedule in effect for 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  12 

that trade, they would still be allowed to perform the differing tasks.  Union agreements and, by their 
nature, PLAs would restrict the work of the governing trade, thereby prohibiting crossover to take 
place.  The crossover of individual workers from one trade activity to another in a single days work is 
more frequent on smaller, less intense projects.  This practice also occurs more frequently in the 
general building construction trades than in other crafts.   

A strong management rights clause would provide additional value given the schedule coupled with 
the need to coordinate the efforts of multiple labor crafts in a very efficient manner.  We anticipate a 
0.50 percent cost advantage for enhanced management rights language offered by the use of PLA.  
Savings are projected to be $97,000.  

5.2.9 Shift Work 
A PLA could reduce any applicable shift premiums to a standardized 5% premium for second and 
third shifts with no reduction in the hours worked (i.e. 8 hours of work for 8 hours of pay) when 
premiums are required by applicable CBAs.  It is anticipated that limited work would be conducted 
on a second shift (approximately 20% of the total hours). Of these applicable hours, we project that 
approximately 30% will be worked on a second shift. The estimated savings by the implementation of 
a second shift premium reduction on this basis is approximately $19,700.  

5.2.10 Off-Site Fabrication 
A PLA could limit off-site work subject to prevailing wage and union agreements to that work 
defined by Section 222 thus allowing for some work to be performed offsite and not subject to 
prevailing wage rate requirements. This PLA study assumed that this offsite work would be 
applicable to 5% of the total craft hours for the Carpenters and Sheet Metal workers, and 2% of the 
total craft hours for the Electrical Workers, Iron Workers and Plumbers & Steamfitters. The offsite 
work performed by these crafts is estimated to reduce cost by 20%. The estimated savings by 
allowing offsite fabrication is projected to be $11,900.  

5.2.11 Workers Compensation ADR 
A PLA could allow for the use of a Worker’s Compensation Alternative Dispute Resolution (“ADR”) 
process. Savings could be realized by providing for such a process.  The ADR process could, 
therefore, be available to contractors conducting work under collective bargaining agreements 
inclusive of PLAs. 

Implementation of a project specific ADR program is not practical given the time frame required to 
develop a program and gain approval through the State Worker’s Compensation system.  Savings are 
not therefore projected in this report.  However, should individual craft labor unions put programs in 
place, any PLA should allow for their use as such terms and conditions could result in a potential for 
reduced cost to the project. 

5.2.12 Contract Duration/Expiration Date 
A PLA could prohibit strikes and lock-outs or other job actions for the duration of the agreement.  
This would avoid the potential for work stoppages resulting from wage and benefit negotiation at the 
end of each craft’s local area agreement, thus ensuring uninterrupted project completion.  While there 
is value implied by the security this term would provide no explicit calculation is made for this report. 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  13 

5.3 Other Economic Savings Attributable to a PLA 

Additional savings not directly related to labor are projected for the project based upon negotiated 
contract provisions. These other economic savings are discussed in detail below.  

5.3.1 Wicks Law 

Section 222 of the NYS Labor Law allows the Airport Authority to avoid the Wicks Law if a Project 
Labor Agreement is implemented.  The Wicks Law requires that public works projects of a certain 
nature use multiple prime contractors, in a designated fashion, rather than allowing a single 
contractor on construction projects. Wicks Law would be applicable to Phases 6 through 10 
(construction cost estimated to be approximately $20,212,995).  Various studies have reported added 
cost to construction from Wicks Law compliance ranging between 10% and 30% of the total 
construction costs. See, for example, the reports prepared by the New York State Division of Budget 
(May 1987) and New York State School Boards Association (March 1991) indicating that 
elimination of the requirements for applicable components of the project to comply with Wicks Law 
would reduce construction costs by 24 to 30 percent and 20 to 30 percent respectively (a range of 
from $4.1 Million to more than $6.1 Million for this project). Governor Pataki reported that the 
Wicks Law adds 10 percent to construction cost in New York State. Justification included in the 
legislation authorizing exemption from Wicks Law cites 10 to 30 percent cost reduction. Assuming 
Wicks Law exemption would only be applicable to Phases 6 through 10, and using a modest ten 
percent reduction in cost, the savings to the Project would represent $2,021,299. Because a PLA is 
the only way to avoid Wicks Law application under Section 222, the savings from that avoidance 
should be considered itself related to the PLA.  

5.4 Summary 
We estimate that using a PLA could result in an estimated savings of: (1) $263,300 in direct labor costs or 
approximately 3.1 percent of the projected total cost of labor for the project (estimated at about 
$8,481,891), and (2) $2,020.000 from Wicks Law avoidance. Total savings could exceed $2,280,000 
Million for a total project cost of $43.6 million, which is approximately a 5.2% savings.  

   



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  14 

Section 6 
Additional Considerations 

Use of a PLA can offer additional non-economic benefits.  These are difficult to precisely quantify in 
monetary terms at this time, but could nonetheless be significant factors in the overall success of the 
Project. 

6.1 Labor Stability 
The Airport Authority anticipates that Project construction will occur over 14 months and will use 
multiple construction contracts to complete the work.  During or just prior to the life of the Project, the 
renewal of five (5) of the fourteen (14) local labor contracts will occur.  Should there be any significant 
disruption during contract renewal negotiations, the Project could be significantly disrupted and the 
objective of completing all projects on time would be jeopardized.  While a cost for disruption may not be 
precisely quantified, the impact is clear.  For projects with multiple crafts (e.g., general and electrical) 
work, disruptions can result in claims of delay by individual sub-contractors working on the site who are 
dependent upon the performance of other sub-contractors subject to the action.  Further, project 
administrative costs, such as additional costs for architectural/engineering oversight and interim project 
financing would be incurred.  At a minimum, an estimated $18,000 to $25,000/month in project 
administration and engineering oversight costs would be expected.  Further, indirect costs related to lost 
revenue or added traveler expense resulting from detours off of the main line. 

6.2 The “Tag Along Provision” 
Key provisions of any Project Labor Agreement include the “Union Recognition and Employment” 
provisions, specifically the Union Referral requirement.  Commonly referred to as the “Tag Along” 
requirement, this provision governs the process of bringing craft workers to the Project.  All craft workers 
are required to pass through the job referral systems and hiring halls established by the unions.  The “Tag 
Along” provision specifically allows a contractor who is not a signatory to a collective bargaining 
agreement to bring his own core employees to the Project.  The number of core employees brought to the 
job is limited by the agreement on the basis of a percentage of the workforce on the Project, thus typically 
increasing the number of workers delivered to the project by the signatory unions.  Historically regional 
PLAs have established a “Tag Along” requirement of 25 percent with special considerations sometimes 
provided for Disadvantaged, Minority and Women Businesses Enterprises (D/M/WBEs) working under 
an approved D/M/WBE plan.  These special considerations offer significant opportunity for these 
minority and women’s business by allowing a greater percentage of their own staff to participate.  The 
“Tag Along” requirements are often the subject of much debate when considering the application of a 
PLA. The increased number of workers delivered to the project by union hiring halls in exchange for the 
concessions and resultant economic savings to the project as described in Section 5 is, however, the core 
element of every negotiation. 

6.3 Workforce Enhancement, Recruiting & Training Programs, and 
D/M/WBE Programs 
This project has not set specific objectives focused on workforce diversity in the form of numerical goals 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  15 

nor has the project established extraordinary recruitment and training objectives. Enhanced language 
regarding workforce diversity, often incorporated into PLAs, would not, therefore, offer significant 
benefit to this project.  Enhanced language regarding recruitment and training, also often incorporated 
into PLAs would also not offer significant benefit to the project except for providing access to qualified 
apprentices to those contractors, primarily M/WBE subcontractors and small businesses of any type who 
would otherwise not have access.  Impacts of apprentice availability were discussed further in the cost 
savings section of this report.  

Disadvantaged/Minority/Women Business Enterprise participation in the project is an important 
objective. Participation goals have not been established and may vary from construction contract to 
construction contract based upon the source of financing.  The rate of union affiliation in the D/M/WBE 
contracting community in the Central New York Region, while significant, is substantially lower than that 
of the overall contracting community and not uniformly found in all crafts or trades.  We would therefore 
anticipate the need for a significant level of participation in the project by non-union D/M/WBE 
subcontractors if goals are to be achieved.  A PLA for the Project must effectively accommodate the 
unique challenges and needs faced by the D/M/WBE contracting community.  Careful attention will need 
to be paid to addressing these needs in any negotiation for a PLA for this project. 

 



Draft PLA Benefits Analysis  
Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project 

 
 

Seeler Engineering, P.C.  16 

Section 7 
Conclusions 

Based upon the size and scope of the Project, the proposed schedule and the anticipated mix of craft labor, 
we conclude that using a PLA would provide the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority with measurable 
economic benefit and would address the Airport Authority’s interest in obtaining the best work at the 
lowest price.  We estimate that using a PLA could result in savings of $286,900 or approximately 3.1 
percent of the projected cost of labor for the Project (estimated at $9,320,736). In addition there are 
estimated savings of $2,400,000 from Wicks Law avoidance. Total direct labor cost savings and other 
savings attributable to use of the proposed PLA could exceed $2,686,900. We estimate that using a PLA 
could result in an estimated total savings could exceed $2,690,000 Million for a total project cost of $47.2 
Million, which is approximately a 5.7% savings.  

Non-quantifiable benefits could also be available through the use of a PLA and include: 

1) avoiding the costly delays of potential strikes, slowdowns, walkouts, picketing and other 
disruptions arising from work disputes and promoting labor harmony and peace for the duration of the 
Project; 

2) standardizing the terms and conditions governing the employment of labor on the Project; 

3) providing comprehensive and standardized mechanisms for the settlement of work disputes, 
including those relating to jurisdiction;  

4) ensuring a reliable source of skilled and experienced labor; and 

5) avoiding favoritism, fraud and/or corruption by ensuring availability of the benefits of the PLA to 
all successful bidders regardless of union/non-union status or the status of their employees. 

In summary, Seeler Engineering, P.C. recommends that the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority proceed 
with the negotiation of a PLA for use on the Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement 
Project to confirm the projected benefits presented herein.  The use of a PLA would promote a number of 
the Airport Authority’s stated objectives, including the prudent use of public funds and avoiding 
favoritism, fraud and/or corruption. 



 
 

Tables  
 



 
 

Table 1  
 



Table 1Syracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Name Local No.

Boilermakers 5

Bricklayers (Bldg) 2

Bricklayers (H&H) 2

Carpenters (Bldg) 277

Carpenters (H&H) 277

Electrical Workers 43

Electrical ‐ Street Lights 1249

Elevator Workers 62

Glazers 660

Heat & Frost Insulators 30

Iron Workers 60

Laborers (Bldg) 633

Laborers (H&H) 633

Millwrights 1163

Operating Eng.  (Building) 158

Operating Eng. (H&H) 158

Operating Eng. (Tech) 158

Painters 4

Plumbers/Steamfitters 267

Roofers 195

Sheet Metal Workers 58

Sprinkler Fitters 669

Teamsters (Bldg) 317

Teamsters (H&H) 317

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



 
 

Table 2  
 



Table 2Syracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Craft Estimated Total Hours Per Craft

Boilermakers 0

Bricklayers (Bldg.) 31,518

Bricklayers (H&H) 0

Carpenters (Bldg) 25,141

Carpenters (H&H) 0

Electrical Workers 13,924

Electrical ‐ Street 0

Elevator Workers 7,490

Glaziers 16,119

Heat & Frost Insulators 8,676

Iron Workers 12,050

Laborers (Bldg) 13,253

Laborers (H&H) 0

Millwrights 0

Operating Eng. (Bldg.) 4,403

Operating Eng. (H&H) 0

Operating Eng. (Tech) 1,212

Painters 550

Plumbers/Steamfitters 7,843

Roofers 15,095

Sheet Metal Workers 10,254

Sprinkler Fitters 0

Teamsters (Bldg) 0

Teamsters (H&H) 0

Total 167,528

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



 
 

Table 3  
 



Table 3Syracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

AGREEMENT PROVISIONS Bricklayers ‐ Bldg Carpenters ‐ Bldg Electrical Workers Elevator Workers Glaziers Heat & Frost Insulators Iron Workers

Local Number 2 277 43 62 660 30 60

Contract Expiration 5/31/2021 5/31/2021 5/31/2018 7/8/2017 4/30/2018 4/30/2020 4/30/2018

Contract Duration 6 Years 5 Years 3 Years 5 Years 4 Years 5 Years 5 Years

Regular Work Week 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri

Regular Work Day 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch

Start Time 6:00 AM - 8:00 AM 6:00 - 9:00 AM 6:00 AM earliest 6:00 AM earliest 6:00 AM - 9:00 AM 7:00 AM (Set by employer) 6:00 AM Earliest

4-10 Hour Days Acceptable, as permitted by law
Acceptable to the extent permitted by 

law
Acceptable with 24 hours notice to the 

Union
Acceptable upon written notification 
to the Local Business Representative

Acceptable to the extent permitted by 
law

Acceptable

Overtime
1.5X Outside Regular Work 

Day/Saturdays
2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X After 8/Outside Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

Report-in Pay (Hrs) 2 2 2 2 2 2

Report-in Pay Description
If employees report for work and 

through no fault of their own are not 
put to work, weather permitting

If no work is provided, unless due to 
inclement weather, utility failure, 

strike, riot or civil disturbance

If employee reports to the job and are 
not put to work due to conditions 

beyond the control of the employee

If no work is provided, unless beyond 
control of the company

If no work is provided, unless out of 
the control of the employer

Any employee who reports for work 
and is unable to work becaue of 

weather or other unforseen conditions 
is entitled to $50.00 travel expenses

IF employee reports to work and 
through no fault of his own is unable 

to start work because of inclement 
weather or any other unforseen 

condition @ $25/hr

Shift Work
1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay

2nd Shift: 7.5 hrs/8 hrs pay
3rd Shift: 7 hrs/8 hrs pay

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 7.5 hrs/8 hrs pay
3rd Shift: 7 hrs/8 hrs pay

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay + 15%
3rd Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay + 25%

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 7.5 hrs/8 hrs pay + 10%
3rd Shift: 7 hrs/8 hrs pay + 15%

Not Addressed (See Other Section)
1st Shift: $30.15
2nd Shift: $34.67
3rd Shift: $37.69

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay + 10%
3rd Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay + 15%

Holiday Pay No No No
Yes, must be on company payroll 

within the last week
Yes (Industrial work only) No No

Observed Holidays

New Years Day 
Decoration Day

Independence Day
Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day

Thanksgiving
Christmas

New Year's Day

New Years Day
Memorial Day

Independence Day
Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

New Years Day
Memorial Day

Independence Day
Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

New Years Day
Memorial Day

Independence Day
Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

New Years Day
Memorial Day

Independence Day
Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day
Christmas Day

New Year's Day
Christmas Day
Memorial Day
Fourth of July

Thanksgiving Day
Labor Day

Journeymen (Ratio) 5 3 3 1 3 3 4

Apprentice (Ratio) 1 1 2 1 1 1 1

Ratio Job Specific (Y/N) No No No No No No No

Travel/Parking Reimbursement Description Not Addressed Not Addressed
If traveling from job to job, milage 

paid at IRS rate

Travel time and expenses shall be 
paid in accordance with the Local 

Expense Agreement

Milage paid from edge of free zone to 
job site. Parking fees reimbursed by 
the employer, not to exceed $9.00

Tavel expenses based on distance 
from Clinton Square, Syracuse, NY

Not Addressed

 Milage Reimbursement Rate  $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                       0.54  $                                                          -    $                                                       0.40  $                                                          -    $                                                          -   

 Parking Reimbursement Rate  $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                       9.00  $                                                          -    $                                                          -   

 Industry Fund Contributions  $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                       0.02  $                                                          -   

Other NA NA NA NA
Shift differential on Building Trade 

projects of $2.00 for prior to 6:00 AM 
or after 12:00 noon

NA NA

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Table 3Syracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

AGREEMENT PROVISIONS

Local Number
Contract Expiration
Contract Duration

Regular Work Week
Regular Work Day

Start Time

4-10 Hour Days

Overtime

Report-in Pay (Hrs)

Report-in Pay Description

Shift Work

Holiday Pay

Observed Holidays

Journeymen (Ratio)
Apprentice (Ratio)

Ratio Job Specific (Y/N)

Travel/Parking Reimbursement Description

 Milage Reimbursement Rate 
 Parking Reimbursement Rate 
 Industry Fund Contributions 

Other

Laborers ‐ Bldg Operating Engineers ‐ Bldg Operating Engineers ‐ Tech Painters  Plumbers & Steamfitters Roofers Sheet Metal Workers

633 158 158 4 267 195 58

5/31/2018 2/28/2019 3/31/2021 4/30/2017 4/30/2019 5/31/2019 4/30/2021

4 Years 4 Years 5 Years 5 Years 4 Years 5 Years 5 Years

40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri 40 Hrs Mo - Fri

8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch 8 Hrs/Day + 0.5 Hr Lunch

7:00 AM - 9:00 AM 6:00 AM to 8:00 AM Flexible, Set by Contractor 8:00 AM 7:00 AM - 8:00 AM 6:00 AM - 8:00 AM 8:00 AM

Acceptable as permitted by law Acceptable Acceptable unless prohibited by law Acceptable as permitted by law Not Addressed Not Addressed Acceptable if mutually agreed

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

1.5X Outside Regular Work 
Week/Saturdays

2X Sundays/Holidays

2 2 2 2 2 2 2

If employee reports for work and no 
work is provided unless due to 

inclement weather, utility failure, 
strike, riot, civil disturbance, or 

demonstration

If employee reports for work and no 
work is provided 

If employee reports for work and no 
work is provided 

If employee reports for work and no 
work is provided 

If employee reports for work and no 
work is provided 

If employee reports for work and no 
work is provided, unless due to 

weather conditions

If employee reports for work and no 
work is provided, unless out of the 

control of the employer

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 7.5 hrs/8 hrs pay
3rd Shift: 7.5 hrs/8 hrs pay

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 7.5 hrs/8 hrs pay
3rd Shift: 7 hrs/8 hrs pay

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 7.5 hrs/8 hrs pay
3rd Shift: 7 hrs/8 hrs pay

$2.00 Premium for all shifts before 
6:00 AM or after 12:00 PM

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 7.5 hrs/8 hrs pay + 15%

3rd Shift: 7 hrs/8 hrs pay +20%

Shift differential of $3.75 for all shifts 
before 5:30 AM or after 5:30 PM

1st Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay
2nd Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay + 15%
3rd Shift: 8 hrs/8 hrs pay +25%

No Yes, must work 5 days before/1 after Yes, must work day before/after No No No No

Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day

Thanksgiving
Christmas

New Year's Day

Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day

Thanksgiving
Christmas

New Year's Day

Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day

Thanksgiving
Christmas

New Year's Day

Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day

Thanksgiving
Christmas

New Year's Day

Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day

Thanksgiving
Christmas

New Year's Day

Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day

Thanksgiving
Christmas

New Year's Day

Memorial Day
4th of July
Labor Day

Thanksgiving
Christmas

New Year's Day

3 3 3 3 3 2 2

1 1 1 1 1 1 1

No Yes Yes No No No No

Not Addressed Not Addressed Not Addressed Travel pay depending on Zone
Milage for personal vehicles paid at 

IRS rate if traveling between jobs 
during the workday

Milage paid outside the free zone Milage paid outside the free zone

 $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                       0.54  $                                                       0.45  $                                                       0.38 

 $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                          -   

 $                                                       0.17  $                                                          -    $                                                          -    $                                                       0.05  $                                                       0.05  $                                                       0.05  $                                                       0.15 

NA District 545 District 545 NA NA NA NA

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



 
 

Appendices  
 



 
 

Appendix A 
 



ID Task Name Start Duration Finish

1 Phase 3 - Terminal Building Roof Replacement Tue 3/6/18 84 days? Sat 6/30/18

2 Phase 4 - Terminal Building Façade Improvements Mon 4/2/18 153 days? Wed 10/31/18

3 Phase 5 - Terminal Building Canopy Tue 5/1/18 132 days? Wed 10/31/18

4 Phase 6 - Installation of Photovoltaic Panels Mon 8/20/18 53 days? Wed 10/31/18

5 Phase 7 - Renovation of Terminal Building Grand Hall Mon 3/5/18 173 days? Wed 10/31/18

6 Phase 8 - Upgrades to Airline Ticketing Counters Mon 8/6/18 63 days? Wed 10/31/18

7 Phase 9 - Renovation of Terminal Building Main Lobby Restrooms Mon 7/16/18 78 days? Wed 10/31/18

8 Phase 10 - Renovation of Ticketing and Baggage Hall Areas Mon 6/11/18 103 days? Wed 10/31/18

9 Phase 11 - Terminal Entrance Roadway Improvements Mon 6/11/18 103 days? Wed 10/31/18

10 Undefined Phase - Terminal Security Upgrages Mon 1/1/18 218 days? Wed 10/31/18

11

12 Bricklayers (Building) Mon 5/31/21 0 days Mon 5/31/21

13 Carpenters (Building) Mon 5/31/21 0 days Mon 5/31/21

14 Electrical Workers Thu 5/31/18 0 days Thu 5/31/18

15 Elevator Workers Sat 7/8/17 0 days Sat 7/8/17

16 Glaziers Mon 4/30/18 0 days Mon 4/30/18

17 Heat & Frost Insulators Mon 4/30/18 0 days Mon 4/30/18

18 Ironworkers Mon 4/30/18 0 days Mon 4/30/18

19 Laborers (Building) Thu 5/31/18 0 days Thu 5/31/18

20 Operating Engineers (Building) Thu 2/28/19 0 days Thu 2/28/19

21 Operating Engineers (Tech) Wed 3/31/21 0 days Wed 3/31/21

22 Painters Sun 4/30/17 0 days Sun 4/30/17

23 Plumberfs & Steamfitters Tue 4/30/19 0 days Tue 4/30/19

24 Roofers Fri 5/31/19 0 days Fri 5/31/19

25 Sheet Metal Workers Fri 4/30/21 0 days Fri 4/30/21

5/31

/8

4/30

4/30

4/30

5/31

AugSep Oct NovDec Jan FebMar Apr May Jun Jul AugSep Oct Nov
2018

Task

Split

Progress

Milestone

Summary

Project Summary

External Tasks

External Milestone

Deadline

Appendix A
Syracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project
PLA Benefits Analysis

Expiration Dates of Various Craft CBAs

Page 1

Syracuse International Airport 
Terminal Improvement Project
Date: Fri 4/14/17



 
 

Appendix B 
 



Syracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

Cost Breakdown

Appendix B

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Syracuse Regional Airport Terminal Improvement Project
 Initial

Construction Cost 
Percent 

Breakdown
 Final

Construction Cost 
Phase 3 ‐ Terminal Building Roof Replacement 34,037,777.78$            27.12% 10,519,574.87$            
Phase 4 ‐ Terminal Building Façade Improvements (Included in Phase III) -$                              13.14% 5,097,007.89$              
Phase 5 ‐ Terminal Building Canopy (Included in Phase III) -$                              4.76% 1,847,089.17$              
Phase 6 ‐ Installation of Photovoltaic Panels (Included in Phase III) -$                              1.66% 642,995.46$                 
Phase 7 ‐ Renovation of Terminal Building Grand Hall (Included in Phase III) -$                              39.54% 15,338,012.18$            
Phase 8 ‐ Upgrades to Airline Ticket Counters (Included in Phase III) -$                              1.53% 593,098.21$                 
Phase 9 - Renovation of Terminal Building Main Lobby Restrooms 1,611,111.11$              4.15% 1,611,111.11$              
Phase 10 - Renovation of Ticketing and Baggage Hall Areas 2,027,777.78$              5.23% 2,027,777.78$              
Phase 11 - Terminal Entrance Roadway Improvements 1,000,000.00$              2.58% 1,000,000.00$              
Undefined Phase - Terminal Security Upgrades (Hardware & Software) 111,111.11$                 0.29% 111,111.11$                 

Total 38,787,777.78$            100.00% 38,787,777.78$            

Soft Costs
Design, Construction Inspection 4,800,100.00$              

Direct Costs Total 4,800,100.00$              

2017 Project Total 43,587,877.78$            

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



 
 

Appendix C 
 



Syracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

Appendix C

Summary

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Item # Cost Savings Total
Savings

1 Flexible Shift Start Times 11,300$              
2 Productivity Gain 10 Hour Days 9,900$                
3 Industry Funds 2,600$                
4 Apprentice Ratios 17,600$              
5 Non Union Apprentices 78,200$              
6 Guaranteed Pay 6,700$                
7 No Holiday Pay 8,400$                
8 Management Rights 97,000$              
9 Shift Work 19,700$              

10 Offsite Fabrication 11,900$              
Total Savings 263,300$            

Total Construction Cost 43,587,878$       
Total Labor Cost 8,481,891$         

Total Savings Percentage 3.1%

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Flex Start TimesSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Assumptions:

Weeks Per Month 4

Hours Per Week Saved 1

Phase 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 Undefined

Applicable Months 1 3 3 1 3 1 2 3 3 0

Craft
Journeyman Rate $/hr 

(incl. Benefits)

Phase 

3

Phase 

4

Phase 

5

Phase 

6

Phase 

7

Phase 

8

Phase 

9

Phase 

10

Phase 

11

Undefined 

Phase

Total 

Cost

Bricklayers ‐ Building  $                              51.68  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Carpenters ‐ Building  $                              45.03  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Electrical Workers  $                              59.52  238 1,429 714 952 3,571 714 476 1,429 0 0  $           9,523.60 

Elevator Workers  $                              75.68  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Glaziers  $                              42.19  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Heat & Frost Insulators  $                              51.88  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Iron Workers  $                              53.15  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Laborers ‐ Building  $                              41.97  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Operating Engineers ‐ Building  $                              59.09  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech  $                              62.24  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Painters  $                              43.44  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Plumbers & Steamfitters  $                              57.63  231 692 0 0 3,458 0 922 692 0 0  $           5,993.52 

Roofers  $                              46.28  0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0  $                       ‐   

Sheet Metal Workers  $                              47.63  191 572 572 191 2,858 191 762 1,143 572 0  $           7,049.24 

Total 659 2,692 1,286 1,143 9,887 905 2,160 3,263 572 0  $         22,566.36 

Percent Union 50%

Total Savings Through Introduction of Flexible Start Times 11,283.18$         

Productivity gain of 1 hour per person per crew per week for coordination of trades for three (3) months per year for two (2) years (2017 through 2018) for the following crafts. 

Twelve (6) applicable months total. Assume applicable to the Summer months (June, July, and August). Assume all work performed by Electrical Workers, Plumbers & Steamfitter, 

Sheet Metal Workers, and Sprinkler Fitters related and subject to savings from flexible start times. Assume all other crafts not subject to savings from flexible start times. 

Savings Per Craft Per Phase

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Productivity Gain 10 Hour DaysSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Assumptions:

Weeks Per Month 4

Hours Per Week Saved 1

Phase 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 Undefined

Applicable Months 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0

Craft
Journeyman Rate $/hr 

(incl. Benefits)

Phase 

3

Phase 

4

Phase 

5

Phase 

6

Phase 

7

Phase 

8

Phase 

9

Phase 

10

Phase 

11

Undefined

Phase

Total 

Cost

Bricklayers ‐ Building  $                              51.68  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             1,034$     ‐$                   $       1,033.60 

Carpenters ‐ Building  $                              45.03  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                   $                   ‐   

Electrical Workers  $                              59.52  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                   $                   ‐   

Elevator Workers  $                              75.68  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                   $                   ‐   

Glaziers  $                              42.19  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                   $                   ‐   

Heat & Frost Insulators  $                              51.88  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                   $                   ‐   

Iron Workers  $                              53.15  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             2,126$     ‐$                   $       2,126.00 

Laborers ‐ Building  $                              41.97  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             3,358$     ‐$                   $       3,357.60 

Operating Engineers ‐ Building  $                              59.09  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             1,182$     ‐$                   $       1,181.80 

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech  $                              62.24  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             1,245$     ‐$                   $       1,244.80 

Painters  $                              43.44  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                   $                   ‐   

Plumbers & Steamfitters  $                              57.63  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                   $                   ‐   

Roofers  $                              46.28  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                   $                   ‐   

Sheet Metal Workers  $                              47.63  ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             953$        ‐$                   $          952.60 

Total ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             9,896$     ‐$                   $       9,896.40 

Contractor/Sub‐Contractor Participation 100%

Total Savings Through Productivity Gain 9,896.40$       

Increased productivity resulting from 1 less set up/clean up cycle per week per employee. Savings available regardless of union/non‐

union affiliation. Assume only applicable to 1st shift hours. Assume all crafts are applicable to productivity gains as a result of 

implementing a 4‐10 hour work schedule.  Assume applicable only to hours related to Phase 11  ‐ Terminal Entrance Roadway 

Improvements

Savings Per Craft Per Phase

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Industry FundsSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Union Affiliation

Round to: $000

Craft
Phase III

Cost

Phase IV

Cost

Phase V

Cost

Phase VI

Cost

Phase VII

Cost

Phase VIII 

Cost

Phase IX

Cost

Phase X

Cost

Phase XI

Cost

Undefined

Cost

Industry Fund 

Contribution per 

Hour

Total 

Estimated 

Cost

Bricklayers ‐ Building ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                         ‐$                             

Carpenters ‐ Building ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                         ‐$                             

Electrical Workers ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                         ‐$                             

Elevator Workers ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                         ‐$                             

Glaziers ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                         ‐$                             

Heat & Frost Insulators 73$             0$               11$             ‐$                79$             ‐$                3$               6$               ‐$                ‐$                  0.02$                       174$                       

Iron Workers ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                         ‐$                             

Laborers ‐ Building 1,338$       158$          181$          18$             90$             7$               2$               3$               456$          ‐$                  0.17$                       2,254$                    

Operating Engineers ‐ Building ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                         ‐$                             

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  ‐$                         ‐$                             

Painters ‐$                3$               ‐$                ‐$                21$             ‐$                3$               ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  0.05$                       28$                          

Plumbers & Steamfitters 19$             32$             ‐$                ‐$                256$          ‐$                53$             32$             ‐$                ‐$                  0.05$                       392$                       

Roofers 656$          3$               77$             6$               13$             ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                  0.05$                       755$                       

Sheet Metal Workers 96$             163$          25$             4$               938$          19$             137$          125$          32$             ‐$                  0.15$                       1,539$                    

Total 2,181$       359$          295$          28$             1,397$       26$             198$          167$          489$          ‐$                  5,141$                    

Union Affiliation 50%

Total Savings Through the Elimination of Industry Funds 2,570$                    

INDUSTRY FUND CONTRIBUTION BY INDIVIDUAL BRIDGE PROJECT

Industry Fund ‐ Eliminate Contri

Maximum Fund Contribution = $

Maximum savings =  $000

Total Savings = $000

Minimum Fund Contribution = $

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Apprentice RatiosSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Total
Journeyman

Rate $/hr

Apprentice

Rate $/hr
J A

Average

Rate $/hr

Total Craft 

Union Hours 

 Labor $

per Craft 

Bricklayers ‐ Building  $          51.68   $          42.01  5 1 50.07$           15,759 789,029$        

Carpenters ‐ Building  $          45.03   $          32.54  3 1 41.91$           12,571 526,811$        

Electrical Workers  $          59.52   $          48.48  3 2 55.10$           6,962 383,633$        

Elevator Workers  $          75.68   $          62.54  1 1 69.11$           3,745 258,804$        

Glaziers  $          42.19   $          26.11  3 1 38.17$           8,060 307,621$        

Heat & Frost Insulators  $          51.88   $          42.54  3 1 49.54$           4,338 214,921$        

Iron Workers  $          53.15   $          36.79  4 1 49.88$           6,025 300,515$        

Laborers ‐ Building  $          41.97   $          34.89  3 1 40.20$           6,627 266,385$        

Operating Engineers ‐ Building  $          59.09   $          50.42  3 1 56.92$           2,202 125,315$        

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech  $          62.24   $          36.44  3 1 55.79$           606 33,809$          

Painters  $          43.44   $          22.63  3 1 38.24$           275 10,515$          

Plumbers & Steamfitters  $          57.63   $          45.55  3 1 54.61$           3,922 214,150$        

Roofers  $          46.28   $          38.72  2 1 43.76$           7,548 330,285$        

Sheet Metal Workers  $          47.63   $          42.31  2 1 45.86$           5,127 235,107$        

Total 83,764 3,996,900$     

Total
Journeyman

Rate $/hr

Apprentice

Rate $/hr
J A

Average

Rate $/hr

Total Craft 

Union Hours 

 Labor $

per Craft 

Bricklayers ‐ Building  $          51.68   $          42.01  3 1 49.26$           15,759 776,332$        

Carpenters ‐ Building  $          45.03   $          32.54  3 1 41.91$           12,571 526,811$        

Electrical Workers  $          59.52   $          48.48  3 2 55.10$           6,962 383,633$        

Elevator Workers  $          75.68   $          62.54  1 1 69.11$           3,745 258,804$        

Glaziers  $          42.19   $          26.11  3 1 38.17$           8,060 307,621$        

Heat & Frost Insulators  $          51.88   $          42.54  3 1 49.54$           4,338 214,921$        

Iron Workers  $          53.15   $          36.79  3 1 49.06$           6,025 295,587$        

Laborers ‐ Building  $          41.97   $          34.89  3 1 40.20$           6,627 266,385$        

Operating Engineers ‐ Building  $          59.09   $          50.42  3 1 56.92$           2,202 125,315$        

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech  $          62.24   $          36.44  3 1 55.79$           606 33,809$          

Painters  $          43.44   $          22.63  3 1 38.24$           275 10,515$          

Plumbers & Steamfitters  $          57.63   $          45.55  3 1 54.61$           3,922 214,150$        

Roofers  $          46.28   $          38.72  2 1 43.76$           7,548 330,285$        

Sheet Metal Workers  $          47.63   $          42.31  2 1 45.86$           5,127 235,107$        

Total 83,764 3,979,274$     

Total Savings Through the Implementation of Apprentice Ratios of 3:1 or Better 17,626$         

LABOR COST USING APPRENTICE RATIOS OF 3:1 OR BETTER

LABOR COST USING APPRENTICE RATIOS PER AGREEMENTS

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Non‐Union Apprentice RatiosSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Total
Journeyman

Rate $/hr

Apprentice

Rate $/hr
J A

Average

Rate $/hr

Total Non‐

Union Hours 

 Labor $

per Craft 

Bricklayers ‐ Building  $          51.68   $          42.01  3 0 51.68$           15,759 814,425$        

Carpenters ‐ Building  $          45.03   $          32.54  3 0 45.03$           12,571 566,050$        

Electrical Workers  $          59.52   $          48.48  3 0 59.52$           6,962 414,396$        

Elevator Workers  $          75.68   $          62.54  1 1 69.11$           3,745 258,804$        

Glaziers  $          42.19   $          26.11  3 0 42.19$           8,060 340,030$        

Heat & Frost Insulators  $          51.88   $          42.54  3 0 51.88$           4,338 225,055$        

Iron Workers  $          53.15   $          36.79  3 0 53.15$           6,025 320,229$        

Laborers ‐ Building  $          41.97   $          34.89  3 0 41.97$           6,627 278,114$        

Operating Engineers ‐ Building  $          59.09   $          50.42  3 0 59.09$           2,202 130,087$        

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech  $          62.24   $          36.44  3 0 62.24$           606 37,717$          

Painters  $          43.44   $          22.63  3 0 43.44$           275 11,946$          

Plumbers & Steamfitters  $          57.63   $          45.55  3 0 57.63$           3,922 225,996$        

Roofers  $          46.28   $          38.72  3 0 46.28$           7,548 349,298$        

Sheet Metal Workers  $          47.63   $          42.31  3 0 47.63$           5,127 244,199$        

Total 83,764 4,216,346$     

Total
Journeyman

Rate $/hr

Apprentice

Rate $/hr
J A

Average

Rate $/hr

Total Non‐

Union Hours 

 Labor $

per Craft 

Bricklayers ‐ Building  $          51.68   $          42.01  3 1 49.26$           15,759 776,332$        

Carpenters ‐ Building  $          45.03   $          32.54  3 1 41.91$           12,571 526,811$        

Electrical Workers  $          59.52   $          48.48  3 2 55.10$           6,962 383,633$        

Elevator Workers  $          75.68   $          62.54  1 1 69.11$           3,745 258,804$        

Glaziers  $          42.19   $          26.11  3 1 38.17$           8,060 307,621$        

Heat & Frost Insulators  $          51.88   $          42.54  3 1 49.54$           4,338 214,921$        

Iron Workers  $          53.15   $          36.79  3 1 49.06$           6,025 295,587$        

Laborers ‐ Building  $          41.97   $          34.89  3 1 40.20$           6,627 266,385$        

Operating Engineers ‐ Building  $          59.09   $          50.42  3 1 56.92$           2,202 125,315$        

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech  $          62.24   $          36.44  3 1 55.79$           606 33,809$          

Painters  $          43.44   $          22.63  3 1 38.24$           275 10,515$          

Plumbers & Steamfitters  $          57.63   $          45.55  3 1 54.61$           3,922 214,150$        

Roofers  $          46.28   $          38.72  2 1 43.76$           7,548 330,285$        

Sheet Metal Workers  $          47.63   $          42.31  2 1 45.86$           5,127 235,107$        

Total 83,764 3,979,274$     

Assumptions: Savings 237,072$       

Utilization Based on Site Activity 33%

Total Savings for Non Union Labor Using Apprentices  78,233.91$    

For this Project crew sizes large enough to utilize 

apprentice ratios is estimated to be 33 percent 

of the total labor hours. 

NON UNION LABOR COST USING APPRENTICE RATIOS OF 3:1 OF BETTER

NON UNION LABOR COST USING NO APPRENTICES

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Guaranteed PaySyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Assumptions:
*Assume one (1) event per phases with total duration exceeding 3 months

*Based on the number of workers on site per week

*(1) ‐ Assumes Only 8 hrs of 24 hr guarantee unworked

Revised Pay Hours 1 Phase 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 Undefined

# of Events 1 1 1 0 1 0 1 1 1 0

Craft

Journeyman 

Rate $/hr 

(w/Benefits) 

Journeyman 

Rate $/hr 

(Wage Only)

Guaranteed 

Pay 

(Hrs)

Phase 3 

Savings

Phase 4 

Savings

Phase 5 

Savings

Phase 6 

Savings

Phase 7 

Savings

Phase 8 

Savings

Phase 9 

Savings

Phase 10 

Workers

Phase 11 

Savings

Undefined 

Savings

 Total

Savings 

Bricklayers ‐ Building 51.68$              32.23$              2 71$          71$          71$          ‐$             1,209$       ‐$                356$          569$         71$          ‐$                  2,418$    

Carpenters ‐ Building 45.03$              27.32$              2 376$        314$        63$          ‐$             690$          ‐$                188$          ‐$              ‐$              ‐$                  1,631$    

Electrical Workers 59.52$              35.75$              2 83$          167$        83$          ‐$             416$          ‐$                83$            167$         ‐$              ‐$                  1,000$    

Elevator Workers 75.68$              43.79$              2 ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$                ‐$                ‐$                ‐$              ‐$              ‐$                  ‐$             

Glaziers 42.19$              24.25$              2 ‐$             842$        ‐$             ‐$             60$            ‐$                ‐$                ‐$              ‐$              ‐$                  902$       

Heat & Frost Insulators 51.88$              31.15$              0 (187)$      (31)$         (31)$         ‐$             (125)$         ‐$                (31)$           (31)$          ‐$              ‐$                  (436)$      

Iron Workers 53.15$              29.00$              2 850$        77$          232$        ‐$             155$          ‐$                77$            ‐$              155$        ‐$                  1,546$    

Laborers ‐ Building 41.97$              23.60$              2 784$        60$          121$        ‐$             60$            ‐$                60$            60$           241$        ‐$                  1,388$    

Operating Engineers ‐ Building 59.09$              35.32$              2 331$        83$          83$          ‐$             83$            ‐$                83$            83$           83$          ‐$                  829$       

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 62.24$              38.49$              2 172$        86$          86$          ‐$             86$            ‐$                ‐$                ‐$              86$          ‐$                  516$       

Painters 43.44$              23.00$              2 ‐$             64$          ‐$             ‐$             64$            ‐$                64$            ‐$              ‐$              ‐$                  192$       

Plumbers & Steamfitters 57.63$              34.01$              2 81$          81$          ‐$             ‐$             406$          ‐$                163$          81$           ‐$              ‐$                  813$       

Roofers 46.28$              26.23$              2 1,393$    66$          133$        ‐$             66$            ‐$                ‐$                ‐$              ‐$              ‐$                  1,658$    

Sheet Metal Workers 47.63$              27.46$              2 68$          68$          68$          ‐$             339$          ‐$                136$          136$         68$          ‐$                  881$       

Total 4,024$    1,948$    908$        ‐$             3,511$       ‐$                1,178$       1,065$     704$        ‐$                  13,337$ 

Union Affiliation 50%

Total Savings Through the Reduction of Guaranteed Pay 6,669$    

Guaranteed Pay Savings Per Phase

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



No Holiday PaySyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Assumptions:
Based on number of workers onsite for each stage for the observed holiday

Assume project site planned shutdown on Christmas/New Years week (no pay obligation)

Phase 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 Undefined

# of Holidays 1 3 3 1 3 1 2 2 2 0

Craft

Journeyman 

Rate 

(w/Benefits) 

Holiday Pay 

(Hrs)

Phase 3 

Savings

Phase 4 

Savings

Phase 5 

Savings

Phase 6 

Savings

Phase 7 

Savings

Phase 8 

Savings

Phase 9 

Savings

Phase 10 

Workers

Phase 11 

Savings

Undefined 

Savings

 Total 

Saving 

Bricklayers ‐ Building  $            51.68  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Carpenters ‐ Building  $            45.03  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Electrical Workers  $            59.52  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Elevator Workers  $            75.68  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Glaziers  $            42.19  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Heat & Frost Insulators  $            51.88  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Iron Workers  $            53.15  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Laborers ‐ Building  $            41.97  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Operating Engineers ‐ Building  $            59.09  8  $   1,891   $   1,418   $   1,418   $       473   $      1,418   $         473   $         945   $         945   $         945   $                 ‐   $        9,927 

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech  $            62.24  8  $       996   $   1,494   $   1,494   $       498   $      1,494   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $         996   $                 ‐   $        6,971 

Painters  $            43.44  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Plumbers & Steamfitters  $            57.63  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Roofers  $            46.28  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Sheet Metal Workers  $            47.63  0  $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $            ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $              ‐   $                 ‐   $                 ‐ 

Total  $   2,887   $   2,912   $   2,912   $       971   $      2,912   $         473   $         945   $         945   $      1,941   $                 ‐  16,898$     

Percent Union 50%

Total Savings Through Elimination of Holiday Pay 8,449$        

Total Holiday Pay Savings

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Management RightsSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Assumptions:

Management Rights 

Percentage
Project Total Project Cost Percent Union Savings

0.50% Phase 3  $                       10,519,575  50% 26,299$                               

0.50% Phase 4  $                         5,097,008  50% 12,743$                               

0.50% Phase 5  $                         1,847,089  50% 4,618$                                  

0.50% Phase 6  $                             642,995  50% 1,607$                                  

0.50% Phase 7  $                       15,338,012  50% 38,345$                               

0.50% Phase 8  $                             593,098  50% 1,483$                                  

0.50% Phase 9  $                         1,611,111  50% 4,028$                                  

0.50% Phase 10  $                         2,027,778  50% 5,069$                                  

0.50% Phase 11  $                         1,000,000  50% 2,500$                                  

0.50% Undefined Phase  $                             111,111  50% 278$                                     

Total 38,787,778$                        96,969$                               

Total Savings Through a Strong Management Rights Clause 96,969$                               

2% for large, long duration, complex projects

1% for smaller, shorter duration, less complex projects

1/4 to 1/2% savings reduction resulting from jurisdictional restrictions on small projects, or on efficiencies already available through 

Design/Build contracts

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Shift WorkSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Assumptions:

*Assume 30% of applicable hours worked on second shift

Estimated Hours Applicable for Multiple Shifts: 20%

Shift breakdown: 1st Shift 70%

2nd Shift 30%

3rd Shift 0%

Union 50%

Non‐Union 50%

Craft
Hourly Wage Rate 

(Union)

Hourly Wage Rate 

(Non‐Union)

2nd Shift Wage Rate $/hr 

(Union)

2nd Shift Wage Rate $/hr

(Union) 

1.05 Premium

2nd Shift Wage Rate $/hr

 (Non‐Union)

Bricklayers ‐ Building 32.23$                                    32.23$                                    37.40$                                    33.84$                                    32.23$                                   

Carpenters ‐ Building 27.32$                                    27.32$                                    31.70$                                    28.69$                                    27.32$                                   

Electrical Workers 35.75$                                    35.75$                                    45.63$                                    37.54$                                    41.48$                                   

Elevator Workers 43.79$                                    43.79$                                    55.90$                                    45.98$                                    43.79$                                   

Glaziers 24.25$                                    24.10$                                    27.28$                                    25.46$                                    24.10$                                   

Heat & Frost Insulators 31.15$                                    31.15$                                    34.89$                                    32.71$                                    31.15$                                   

Iron Workers 29.00$                                    29.00$                                    31.90$                                    30.45$                                    29.00$                                   

Laborers ‐ Building 23.60$                                    23.60$                                    27.39$                                    24.78$                                    23.60$                                   

Operating Engineers ‐ Building 35.32$                                    35.32$                                    40.99$                                    37.09$                                    35.32$                                   

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 38.49$                                    35.32$                                    44.66$                                    40.41$                                    35.32$                                   

Painters 23.00$                                    23.00$                                    25.00$                                    24.15$                                    24.00$                                   

Plumbers & Steamfitters 34.01$                                    33.16$                                    38.09$                                    35.71$                                    33.16$                                   

Roofers 26.23$                                    26.23$                                    34.90$                                    27.54$                                    26.23$                                   

Sheet Metal Workers 27.46$                                    27.46$                                    31.58$                                    28.83$                                    27.46$                                   

Total 431.60$                                  427.43$                                  507.30$                                  453.18$                                  434.16$                                 

Craft Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total

Bricklayers ‐ Building 16 211 6 1 4,147 206 550 1,124 43 0 6,304

Carpenters ‐ Building 734 1,111 95 6 2,686 18 379 0 0 0 5,029

Electrical Workers 105 245 105 350 1,240 245 107 301 0 88 2,786

Elevator Workers 0 0 0 0 1,498 0 0 0 0 0 1,498

Glaziers 0 3,070 0 0 154 0 0 0 0 0 3,224

Heat & Frost Insulators 734 3 114 0 790 0 29 65 0 0 1,736

Iron Workers 1,397 59 429 89 261 0 10 0 165 0 2,411

Laborers ‐ Building 1,574 186 213 22 106 8 2 4 537 0 2,651

Operating Engineers ‐ Building 468 18 134 28 74 3 1 1 154 0 881

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 147 5 36 6 14 0 0 0 35 0 243

Painters 0 12 0 0 84 0 14 0 0 0 110

Plumbers & Steamfitters 77 129 0 0 1,025 0 211 128 0 0 1,569

Roofers 2,622 12 308 24 53 0 0 0 0 0 3,020

Sheet Metal Workers 127 217 33 5 1,250 26 183 167 43 0 2,051

Total 8,001 5,278 1,475 531 13,383 506 1,485 1,791 977 88 33,513

Craft Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total

Bricklayers ‐ Building 11 148 4 1 2,903 144 385 787 30 0 4,413

Carpenters ‐ Building 514 777 67 4 1,880 13 265 0 0 0 3,520

Electrical Workers 74 171 74 245 868 172 75 211 0 61 1,950

Elevator Workers 0 0 0 0 1,049 0 0 0 0 0 1,049

Glaziers 0 2,149 0 0 108 0 0 0 0 0 2,257

Heat & Frost Insulators 514 2 80 0 553 0 20 45 0 0 1,215

Iron Workers 978 41 301 62 183 0 7 0 116 0 1,687

Laborers ‐ Building 1,102 130 149 15 74 6 1 3 376 0 1,856

Operating Engineers ‐ Building 327 13 94 20 52 2 1 1 108 0 617

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 103 3 25 4 10 0 0 0 25 0 170

Painters 0 9 0 0 59 0 10 0 0 0 77

Plumbers & Steamfitters 54 90 0 0 717 0 148 90 0 0 1,098

Roofers 1,836 8 216 17 37 0 0 0 0 0 2,114

Sheet Metal Workers 89 152 23 3 875 18 128 117 30 0 1,436

Total 5,601 3,694 1,032 371 9,368 354 1,040 1,253 684 61 23,459

Craft Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total

Bricklayers ‐ Building 5 63 2 0 1,244 62 165 337 13 0 1,891

Carpenters ‐ Building 220 333 29 2 806 6 114 0 0 0 1,509

Electrical Workers 32 73 32 105 372 74 32 90 0 26 836

Elevator Workers 0 0 0 0 449 0 0 0 0 0 449

Glaziers 0 921 0 0 46 0 0 0 0 0 967

Heat & Frost Insulators 220 1 34 0 237 0 9 19 0 0 521

Iron Workers 419 18 129 27 78 0 3 0 50 0 723

Laborers ‐ Building 472 56 64 6 32 3 1 1 161 0 795

Operating Engineers ‐ Building 140 5 40 9 22 1 0 0 46 0 264

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 44 1 11 2 4 0 0 0 11 0 73

Painters 0 4 0 0 25 0 4 0 0 0 33

Plumbers & Steamfitters 23 39 0 0 307 0 63 38 0 0 471

Roofers 787 4 92 7 16 0 0 0 0 0 906

Sheet Metal Workers 38 65 10 1 375 8 55 50 13 0 615

Total 2,400 1,583 442 159 4,015 152 446 537 293 26 10,054

Wage Rates by Craft

First Shift Hours by Phase

Total Applicable Hours by Phase

Second Shift Hours by Phase

*Assume second shift work is applicable to 20% of the total craft hours 

Union Breakdown:

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14 Seeler Engineering, P.C.



Shift WorkSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Craft Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total
Bricklayers ‐ Building 360.98$                                  4,755.86$                             130.85$                                 31.59$                                   93,564.98$                           4,643.05$                             12,417.57$                        25,367.59$                       961.10$                            ‐$                                   142,233.57$                   
Carpenters ‐ Building 14,044.67$                            21,239.11$                            1,816.78$                             110.92$                                 51,363.24$                           351.88$                                 7,244.17$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   96,170.77$                      
Electrical Workers 2,627.63$                              6,126.12$                             2,627.63$                             8,748.74$                             31,036.01$                           6,131.13$                             2,687.69$                          7,542.54$                         ‐$                                   2,192.19$                         69,719.65$                      
Elevator Workers ‐$                                        ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       45,918.19$                           ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   45,918.19$                      
Glaziers ‐$                                        51,955.46$                            ‐$                                       ‐$                                       2,599.30$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   54,554.76$                      
Heat & Frost Insulators 16,009.23$                            74.14$                                   2,490.13$                             ‐$                                       17,234.67$                           ‐$                                       623.62$                            1,412.96$                         ‐$                                   ‐$                                   37,844.76$                      
Iron Workers 28,355.04$                            1,201.76$                             8,716.82$                             1,802.64$                             5,302.36$                             ‐$                                       203.00$                            ‐$                                   3,353.56$                         ‐$                                   48,935.18$                      
Laborers ‐ Building 25,995.87$                            3,069.42$                             3,525.37$                             356.83$                                 1,747.82$                             138.77$                                 29.74$                               66.08$                               8,871.24$                         ‐$                                   43,801.13$                      
Operating Engineers ‐ Building 11,565.89$                            445.03$                                 3,322.91$                             702.16$                                 1,829.58$                             74.17$                                   19.78$                               34.61$                               3,797.61$                         ‐$                                   21,791.73$                      
Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 3,787.19$                              124.00$                                 924.84$                                 165.33$                                 366.84$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   914.51$                            ‐$                                   6,282.71$                        
Painters ‐$                                        196.42$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       1,358.84$                             ‐$                                       218.96$                            ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   1,774.22$                        
Plumbers & Steamfitters 1,800.83$                              3,028.02$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                       24,087.83$                           ‐$                                       4,960.50$                          3,009.22$                         ‐$                                   ‐$                                   36,886.41$                      
Roofers 48,149.89$                            220.33$                                 5,658.86$                             436.99$                                 976.81$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   55,442.88$                      
Sheet Metal Workers 2,448.88$                              4,175.02$                             642.01$                                 92.27$                                   24,031.34$                           495.93$                                 3,517.63$                          3,202.39$                         826.55$                            ‐$                                   39,432.01$                      
Total 155,146.08$                          96,610.69$                            29,856.20$                           12,447.47$                           301,417.80$                         11,834.93$                           31,923 40,635 18,725 2,192 700,787.96$                   

Craft Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total
Bricklayers ‐ Building 167.11$                                  2,201.71$                             60.58$                                   14.62$                                   43,315.57$                           2,149.49$                             5,748.67$                          11,743.83$                       444.94$                            ‐$                                   65,846.52$                      
Carpenters ‐ Building 6,501.93$                              9,832.57$                             841.07$                                 51.35$                                   23,778.43$                           162.90$                                 3,353.66$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   44,521.92$                      
Electrical Workers 1,372.11$                              3,198.98$                             1,372.11$                             4,568.48$                             16,206.61$                           3,201.60$                             1,403.48$                          3,938.62$                         ‐$                                   1,144.73$                         36,406.73$                      
Elevator Workers ‐$                                        ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       22,399.47$                           ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   22,399.47$                      
Glaziers ‐$                                        23,662.61$                            ‐$                                       ‐$                                       1,183.82$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   24,846.43$                      
Heat & Frost Insulators 7,272.76$                              33.68$                                   1,131.23$                             ‐$                                       7,829.47$                             ‐$                                       283.30$                            641.89$                            ‐$                                   ‐$                                   17,192.33$                      
Iron Workers 12,759.77$                            540.79$                                 3,922.57$                             811.19$                                 2,386.06$                             ‐$                                       91.35$                               ‐$                                   1,509.10$                         ‐$                                   22,020.83$                      
Laborers ‐ Building 12,034.70$                            1,420.98$                             1,632.06$                             165.19$                                 809.15$                                 64.24$                                   13.77$                               30.59$                               4,106.91$                         ‐$                                   20,277.58$                      
Operating Engineers ‐ Building 5,354.39$                              206.03$                                 1,538.33$                             325.06$                                 847.00$                                 34.34$                                   9.16$                                 16.02$                               1,758.09$                         ‐$                                   10,088.41$                      
Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 1,758.86$                              57.59$                                   429.52$                                 76.79$                                   170.37$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   424.72$                            ‐$                                   2,917.83$                        
Painters ‐$                                        89.67$                                   ‐$                                       ‐$                                       620.34$                                 ‐$                                       99.96$                               ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   809.97$                           
Plumbers & Steamfitters 818.68$                                  1,376.57$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                       10,950.60$                           ‐$                                       2,255.10$                          1,368.02$                         ‐$                                   ‐$                                   16,768.97$                      
Roofers 24,044.24$                            110.03$                                 2,825.82$                             218.22$                                 487.78$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   27,686.08$                      
Sheet Metal Workers 1,128.24$                              1,923.49$                             295.79$                                 42.51$                                   11,071.58$                           228.48$                                 1,620.62$                          1,475.38$                         380.80$                            ‐$                                   18,166.89$                      
Total 73,212.77$                            44,654.69$                            14,049.07$                           6,273.41$                             142,056.24$                         5,841.05$                             14,879.07$                        19,214.36$                       8,624.56$                         1,144.73$                         329,949.95$                   

Craft Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total
Bricklayers ‐ Building 158.57$                                  2,089.18$                             57.48$                                   13.88$                                   41,101.76$                           2,039.63$                             5,454.86$                          11,143.62$                       422.20$                            ‐$                                   62,481.17$                      
Carpenters ‐ Building 6,169.62$                              9,330.04$                             798.09$                                 48.73$                                   22,563.14$                           154.58$                                 3,182.26$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   42,246.45$                      
Electrical Workers 1,244.60$                              2,901.70$                             1,244.60$                             4,143.93$                             14,700.54$                           2,904.07$                             1,273.05$                          3,572.60$                         ‐$                                   1,038.35$                         33,023.46$                      
Elevator Workers ‐$                                        ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       20,171.21$                           ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   20,171.21$                      
Glaziers ‐$                                        22,825.02$                            ‐$                                       ‐$                                       1,141.92$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   23,966.94$                      
Heat & Frost Insulators 7,032.63$                              32.57$                                   1,093.88$                             ‐$                                       7,570.95$                             ‐$                                       273.95$                            620.69$                            ‐$                                   ‐$                                   16,624.66$                      
Iron Workers 12,455.96$                            527.92$                                 3,829.17$                             791.87$                                 2,329.25$                             ‐$                                       89.18$                               ‐$                                   1,473.17$                         ‐$                                   21,496.53$                      
Laborers ‐ Building 11,419.62$                            1,348.35$                             1,548.64$                             156.75$                                 767.79$                                 60.96$                                   13.06$                               29.03$                               3,897.01$                         ‐$                                   19,241.21$                      
Operating Engineers ‐ Building 5,080.73$                              195.50$                                 1,459.70$                             308.45$                                 803.71$                                 32.58$                                   8.69$                                 15.21$                               1,668.23$                         ‐$                                   9,572.80$                        
Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 1,665.40$                              54.53$                                   406.69$                                 72.71$                                   161.31$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   402.15$                            ‐$                                   2,762.79$                        
Painters ‐$                                        88.11$                                   ‐$                                       ‐$                                       609.58$                                 ‐$                                       98.23$                               ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   795.92$                           
Plumbers & Steamfitters 791.32$                                  1,330.58$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                       10,584.71$                           ‐$                                       2,179.75$                          1,322.31$                         ‐$                                   ‐$                                   16,208.67$                      
Roofers 21,151.56$                            96.79$                                   2,485.86$                             191.96$                                 429.10$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   24,355.26$                      
Sheet Metal Workers 1,075.76$                              1,834.03$                             282.03$                                 40.53$                                   10,556.63$                           217.85$                                 1,545.24$                          1,406.76$                         363.09$                            ‐$                                   17,321.92$                      
Total 68,245.77$                            42,654.31$                            13,206.15$                           5,768.81$                             133,491.58$                         5,409.67$                             14,118.27$                        18,110.23$                       8,225.85$                         1,038.35$                         310,268.99$                   

Craft Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total
Bricklayers ‐ Building 158.57$                                  2,089.18$                             57.48$                                   13.88$                                   41,101.76$                           2,039.63$                             5,454.86$                          11,143.62$                       422.20$                            ‐$                                   62,481.17$                      
Carpenters ‐ Building 6,169.62$                              9,330.04$                             798.09$                                 48.73$                                   22,563.14$                           154.58$                                 3,182.26$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   42,246.45$                      
Electrical Workers 1,244.60$                              2,901.70$                             1,244.60$                             4,143.93$                             14,700.54$                           2,904.07$                             1,273.05$                          3,572.60$                         ‐$                                   1,038.35$                         33,023.46$                      
Elevator Workers ‐$                                        ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       20,171.21$                           ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   20,171.21$                      
Glaziers ‐$                                        22,825.02$                            ‐$                                       ‐$                                       1,141.92$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   23,966.94$                      
Heat & Frost Insulators 7,032.63$                              32.57$                                   1,093.88$                             ‐$                                       7,570.95$                             ‐$                                       273.95$                            620.69$                            ‐$                                   ‐$                                   16,624.66$                      
Iron Workers 12,455.96$                            527.92$                                 3,829.17$                             791.87$                                 2,329.25$                             ‐$                                       89.18$                               ‐$                                   1,473.17$                         ‐$                                   21,496.53$                      
Laborers ‐ Building 11,419.62$                            1,348.35$                             1,548.64$                             156.75$                                 767.79$                                 60.96$                                   13.06$                               29.03$                               3,897.01$                         ‐$                                   19,241.21$                      
Operating Engineers ‐ Building 5,080.73$                              195.50$                                 1,459.70$                             308.45$                                 803.71$                                 32.58$                                   8.69$                                 15.21$                               1,668.23$                         ‐$                                   9,572.80$                        
Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 1,665.40$                              54.53$                                   406.69$                                 72.71$                                   161.31$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   402.15$                            ‐$                                   2,762.79$                        
Painters ‐$                                        88.11$                                   ‐$                                       ‐$                                       609.58$                                 ‐$                                       98.23$                               ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   795.92$                           
Plumbers & Steamfitters 791.32$                                  1,330.58$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                       10,584.71$                           ‐$                                       2,179.75$                          1,322.31$                         ‐$                                   ‐$                                   16,208.67$                      
Roofers 21,151.56$                            96.79$                                   2,485.86$                             191.96$                                 429.10$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   24,355.26$                      
Sheet Metal Workers 1,075.76$                              1,834.03$                             282.03$                                 40.53$                                   10,556.63$                           217.85$                                 1,545.24$                          1,406.76$                         363.09$                            ‐$                                   17,321.92$                      
Total 68,245.77$                            42,654.31$                            13,206.15$                           5,768.81$                             133,491.58$                         5,409.67$                             14,118.27$                        18,110.23$                       8,225.85$                         1,038.35$                         310,268.99$                   

Craft Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total
Bricklayers ‐ Building 515.68$                                  6,794.08$                             186.93$                                 45.12$                                   133,664.26$                         6,632.93$                             17,739.39$                        36,239.41$                       1,373.00$                         ‐$                                   203,190.81$                   
Carpenters ‐ Building 20,063.81$                            30,341.59$                            2,595.40$                             158.46$                                 73,376.06$                           502.69$                                 10,348.82$                        ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   137,386.82$                   
Electrical Workers 3,753.75$                              8,751.60$                             3,753.75$                             12,498.20$                           44,337.15$                           8,758.75$                             3,839.55$                          10,775.05$                       ‐$                                   3,131.70$                         99,599.50$                      
Elevator Workers ‐$                                        ‐$                                       ‐$                                       ‐$                                       65,597.42$                           ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   65,597.42$                      
Glaziers ‐$                                        74,222.09$                            ‐$                                       ‐$                                       3,713.28$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   77,935.37$                      
Heat & Frost Insulators 22,870.33$                            105.91$                                 3,557.33$                             ‐$                                       24,620.96$                           ‐$                                       890.89$                            2,018.52$                         ‐$                                   ‐$                                   54,063.94$                      
Iron Workers 40,507.20$                            1,716.80$                             12,452.60$                           2,575.20$                             7,574.80$                             ‐$                                       290.00$                            ‐$                                   4,790.80$                         ‐$                                   69,907.40$                      
Laborers ‐ Building 37,136.96$                            4,384.88$                             5,036.24$                             509.76$                                 2,496.88$                             198.24$                                 42.48$                               94.40$                               12,673.20$                       ‐$                                   62,573.04$                      
Operating Engineers ‐ Building 16,522.70$                            635.76$                                 4,747.01$                             1,003.09$                             2,613.68$                             105.96$                                 28.26$                               49.45$                               5,425.15$                         ‐$                                   31,131.05$                      
Operating Engineers ‐ Tech 5,410.27$                              177.14$                                 1,321.20$                             236.19$                                 524.05$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   1,306.44$                         ‐$                                   8,975.30$                        
Painters ‐$                                        280.60$                                 ‐$                                       ‐$                                       1,941.20$                             ‐$                                       312.80$                            ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   2,534.60$                        
Plumbers & Steamfitters 2,572.61$                              4,325.75$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                       34,411.19$                           ‐$                                       7,086.44$                          4,298.88$                         ‐$                                   ‐$                                   52,694.87$                      
Roofers 68,785.55$                            314.76$                                 8,084.09$                             624.27$                                 1,395.44$                             ‐$                                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   79,204.11$                      
Sheet Metal Workers 3,498.40$                              5,964.31$                             917.16$                                 131.81$                                 34,330.49$                           708.47$                                 5,025.18$                          4,574.84$                         1,180.78$                         ‐$                                   56,331.44$                      
Total 221,637.26$                          138,015.28$                          42,651.71$                           17,782.10$                           430,596.85$                         16,907.04$                           45,603.80$                        58,050.55$                       26,749.37$                       3,131.70$                         1,001,125.65$                

1st Shift Cost Per Phase

2nd Shift Cost Per Phase with Standard Differentials

2nd Shift Cost Per Phase 5% Differential

2nd Shift Cost Per Phase with Standard Differentials or 5% Differentials (Whichever is Less

Total Shiftwork Cost Per Phase with No Differentials

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14 Seeler Engineering, P.C.



Shift WorkSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Cost Descriptions Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total
Total Cost Per Project w/ STD Differentials 228,358.86$                          141,265.38$                          43,905.27$                           18,720.88$                           443,474.04$                         17,675.97$                           46,801.73$                        59,849.75$                       27,349.11$                       3,336.92$                         1,030,737.91$                

Total Cost Per Project w/ STD Differentials or 5% 223,391.85$                          139,265.00$                          43,062.35$                           18,216.28$                           434,909.37$                         17,244.60$                           46,040.93$                        58,745.61$                       26,950.41$                       3,230.54$                         1,011,056.94$                

Total Cost Per Project w/ No Differentials 221,637.26$                          138,015.28$                          42,651.71$                           17,782.10$                           430,596.85$                         16,907.04$                           45,603.80$                        58,050.55$                       26,749.37$                       3,131.70$                         1,001,125.65$                

Savings Description Phase 3 Phase 4 Phase 5 Phase 6 Phase 7 Phase 8 Phase 9 Phase 10 Phase 11 Undefined Phase Total
Savings Per Project w/ STD Differential or 5% 4,967.00$                              2,000.38$                             842.92$                                 504.60$                                 8,564.67$                             431.37$                                 760.80$                             1,104.14$                         398.70$                            106.38$                            19,680.97$                      

Savings Per Project w/ No Differential 6,721.59$                              3,250.11$                             1,253.56$                             938.78$                                 12,877.19$                           768.93$                                 1,197.93$                          1,799.20$                         599.75$                            205.22$                            29,612.26$                      

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14 Seeler Engineering, P.C.



Offsite FabricationSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Assumptions:

Assume offsite fabrication would result in a 20% cost reduction

Trade
Phase 3 

Savings

Phase 4 

Savings

Phase 5 

Savings

Phase 6 

Savings

Phase 7 

Savings

Phase 8 

Savings

Phase 9 

Savings

Phase 10 

Workers

Phase 11 

Savings

Undefined 

Savings

Journeyman 

Rate $/hr 

(w/Benefits)

Percentage 

Worked 

Offsite

Cost 

Reduction

 Cost 

Savings 

Bricklayers ‐ Building ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 51.68$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Carpenters ‐ Building 1,654$    2,501$    214$        13$          6,047$       41$            853$          ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 45.03$             5% 20% 11,322$          

Electrical Workers 125$        291$        125$        416$        1,476$       292$          128$          359$          ‐$               104$            59.52$             2% 20% 3,317$            

Elevator Workers ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 75.68$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Glaziers ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 42.19$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Heat & Frost Insulators ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 51.88$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Iron Workers 1,485$    63$          456$        94$          278$          ‐$               11$            ‐$               176$          ‐$                 53.15$             2% 20% 2,562$            

Laborers ‐ Building ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 41.97$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Operating Engineers ‐ Building ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 59.09$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Operating Engineers ‐ Tech ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 62.24$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Painters ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 43.44$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Plumbers & Steamfitters 88$          148$        ‐$             ‐$             1,181$       ‐$               243$          148$          ‐$               ‐$                 57.63$             2% 20% 1,808$            

Roofers ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$             ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$               ‐$                 46.28$             0% 20% ‐$                     

Sheet Metal Workers 303$        517$        80$          11$          2,977$       61$            436$          397$          102$          ‐$                 47.63$             5% 20% 4,885$            

Total 3,655$    3,521$    875$        535$        11,959$    395$          1,670$      903$          278$          104$            23,895$          

Percent Union  50%

Total Savings Through the Use of Offsite Fabrication 11,948$          

Assume offsite fabrication only applies to Iron Workers

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



Wicks Law ExemptionSyracuse Regional Airport Authority

Syracuse International Airport 

Terminal Improvement Project

50% Union

PLA Benefit Analysis

Phase Project Cost
Wicks Law 

Reduction

Total Cost of 

Program

Phase 6 ‐ Installation of Photovoltaic Panels (Included in Phase III)  $               642,995  10.00% 64,300$                

Phase 7 ‐ Renovation of Terminal Building Grand Hall (Included in Phase III)  $         15,338,012  10.00% 1,533,801$          

Phase 8 ‐ Upgrades to Airline Ticket Counters (Included in Phase III)  $               593,098  10.00% 59,310$                

Phase 9 ‐ Renovation of Terminal Building Main Lobby Restrooms  $           1,611,111  10.00% 161,111$              

Phase 10 ‐ Renovation of Ticketing and Baggage Hall Areas  $           2,027,778  10.00% 202,778$              

Total 20,212,995$         2,021,299$          

* Reports prepared by the New York State Division of Budget (May 1987) and New York State School Boards Association (March 1991) indicate 

that elimination of the requirement to comply with Wicks Law would reduce construction costs by 20 to 30 percent. Assume a modest 10 percent 

reduction in cost.

Recent state legislation includes a provision that allows the Airport Authority to aviod the use of Wicks Law if a Project Labor Agreement is 

implemented. Wicks Law requires that public works projects of this nature use multiple prime contractors, in a designated fashion, rather than 

allowing a single contractor on a construction projects. 

Terminal Improvements REV 2.0 50% Union 2017‐04‐14



 
 

End of Document 
 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



{H3063364.1}  

Resolution No. ___   2017 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO 

ACKNOWLEDGE AUTHORITYS RESPONSIBILITY TO CONTRIBUTE TO 

PUBLIC WORK ENFORCEMENT FUND AND MAKE NECESSARY 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the "Authority") is a public 

benefit corporation, formed and operating pursuant to Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York 

2011 and Article 8, Title 34 of the New York Public Authorities Law, as amended (collectively 

the "Enabling Act"); and 

WHEREAS, Section 2799-ggg (11) of the Enabling Act authorizes the Authority to enter 

into contracts, agreements and leases with the federal government, the state, the county, the city, 

any person or other public corporation and to execute all instruments necessary or convenient to 

accomplishing its corporate purposes which include the development, expansion, maintenance 

and operation of aviation facilities in Central New York in general and the Syracuse Hancock 

International Airport (“Airport”) in particular; and 

WHEREAS, by letter dated March 27, 2017 from the New York State Department of Labor 

(the “Notice”) advising of the Authority’s obligation to make contributions to the New York State 

Public Work Enforcement Fund (“PWEF”), a copy of said Notice being annexed hereto at 

Exhibit “A”; and  

WHEREAS, the Notice advised that the Authority is obligated to contribute one tenth 

(0.1) of one percent (0.01) of the amount of every public work contract entered into by the 

Authority to the PWEF, and further advised that the Notice must be signed and returned to the 

NYS Department of labor. 

NOW, THEREFORE, after due deliberation having been had thereon, it is hereby 



{H3063364.1}  

RESOLVED, by the Board of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority, that the Executive 

Director is authorized to sign the Notice on behalf of the Authority; return it to the New York State 

Department of Labor; and that the Authority shall make the necessary PWEF contributions as 

advised in and required by the Notice.  

 Resolution Adopted Date: May __, 2017. 

Vote: Ayes         Nays:           Abstentions:         . 

Signed:                                    ___                                     . 

   Secretary 

 

 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda









{H3063444.1}  

   Resolution No. ___   2017 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO EXECUTE 

CONTRACT TO PROVIDE SECURITY PERSONNEL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the "Authority") is a public 

benefit corporation, formed and operating pursuant to Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York 

2011 and Article 8, Title 34 of the New York Public Authorities Law, as amended (collectively 

the "Enabling Act"); and 

WHEREAS, Section 2799-ggg (11) of the Enabling Act authorizes the Authority to enter 

into contracts, agreements and leases with the federal government, the state, the county, the city, 

any person or other public corporation and to execute all instruments necessary or convenient to 

accomplishing its corporate purposes which include the development, expansion, maintenance 

and operation of aviation facilities in Central New York in general and the Syracuse Hancock 

International Airport (“Airport”) in particular; and 

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 9 of 2017 the Board of the Authority previously 

approved the selection of Securitas Aviation USA, Inc. (a/k/a Securitas Critical Infrastructure 

Services, Inc. a/k/a “Securitas”) to replace G4S Secure Solutions, Inc. to provide security 

personnel services at the Airport;  

WHEREAS, Resolution No. 9 of 2017 also authorized the Executive Director, with the 

advice of counsel, to undertake negotiations with Securitas concerning the specific terms and 

conditions of such agreement for security personnel services (the “Agreement”); 

WHEREAS, the Executive Director has advised that such negotiations are substantially 

complete and has advised the Board of the Agreements key terms and conditions; 

NOW, THEREFORE, after due deliberation having been had thereon, it is hereby 



{H3063444.1}  

RESOLVED, that the Executive Director, with the advice of counsel and subject to the 

requirements of the Procurement Policy, is hereby authorized to finalize negotiations concerning 

the terms of a definitive three (3) year Security Personnel Services Agreement with Securitas, 

which term may be extended for an additional two (2) years at the Authority’s discretion, and it 

is further 

RESOLVED, that upon finalization of the Agreement and with the advice of counsel, that 

the Executive Director is authorized to execute an Agreement for Security Personnel Services 

with Securitas on behalf of the Authority. 

Resolution Adopted Date: May __, 2017. 

Vote: Ayes         Nays:           Abstentions:         . 

Signed:                                    ___                                     . 

   Secretary 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



Resolution No. ___:  May ____, 2017 

 

{H2760354.1}  

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CREATION OF THE POSITION  

OF DIRECTOR OF AIRPORT OPERATIONS  

FOR THE SYRACUSE REGIONAL AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the "Authority") is a public 

benefit corporation, formed and operating pursuant to Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York 

2011 (the "Enabling Act") and Article 8, Title 34 of the New York Public Authorities Law, as 

amended; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2799-ggg (12) of the Enabling Act authorizes the Authority to 

appoint such officers, employees and agents as the Authority may require for the performance of 

its duties, and to fix and determine their qualifications, duties and compensation; and 

 WHEREAS, the Authority desires to create the position of Director of Airport 

Operations, which position the Authority believes is necessary to assist the Authority in 

performing its obligations and duties under the Enabling Act, and its future contractual 

responsibilities to keep, maintain and operate the Syracuse Hancock International Airport; and 

WHEREAS, the creation of this position is a necessary step required by the Onondaga 

County Personnel Department and the New York State Civil Service Commission. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, after due deliberation having been had thereon, it is 

hereby  

 RESOLVED, that the Board of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority hereby 

creates the position of Director of Airport Operations, and it is further 

 RESOLVED, that the Executive Director of the Authority shall take any and all 

actions necessary to ensure this position is properly designated by the Onondaga County 

Civil Service Department or any similar governmental entity. 



{H2760354.1} 2 

 

RESOLUTION ADOPTED 

 

DATE: May ____, 2017 

 

VOTE: Ayes ____   Nays ____   Abstentions ____ 

 

SIGNED: __________________________________ 

  Secretary 

 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



DIRECTOR OF AIRPORT SECURITY 

(Syracuse Regional Airport Authority) 

1 (v3.1, Draft, 2017-02-16) 

DISTINGUISHING FEATURES OF THE CLASS  

Has overall responsibility for the security and public safety of the Airport.  Ensures compliance with FAA 

(Part 139) and TSA (Section 1542) regulations or other legislative regulations and Airport rules, policies 

and procedures that provide the basis for safe and secure Airport operations.  Participates in the 

development of Airport security and emergency plans.  Supervises the security badging function.  

Oversees/manages the uniformed law enforcement function consistent with federal regulations and, as 

appropriate, local/county/state regulations.  Reports to the Executive Director and supervises one or more 

staff members.  Does related work as required.  

 

TYPICAL WORK ACTIVITIES  

 Responsible for all aspects of security for the Airport. 

 Oversees compliance with all aspects of CFR 49 Part 1542. 

 Oversees the review of the Airport Security Program (ASP), recommending updates and changes, 

as necessary. 

 Assists with recruitment, selection and training of all SRAA staff assigned to the Airport Security 

Office and the Uniformed Security Division. 

 Supervises all staff assigned to the Airport Security Office and the Uniformed Security Division. 

 Serves as primary point of contact for a contractor providing law enforcement and/or security 

personnel, if applicable. 

 Formulates or approves policies and procedures for Uniformed Security services. 

 Plans or approves assignments of Uniformed Security personnel to achieve optimum service 

levels. 

 Maintains liaison with federal, state, and local law enforcement and security agencies to 

coordinate joint activities and exchange information pertaining to airport security issues. 

 Conducts research, analyzes data and prepares recommendations on assigned projects. 

 Performs other related duties as assigned. 

 



DIRECTOR OF AIRPORT SECURITY 

(Syracuse Regional Airport Authority) 

2 (v3.1, Draft, 2017-02-16) 

FULL PERFORMANCE KNOWLEDGES, SKILLS, ABILITIES AND PERSONAL 

CHARACTERISTICS 

 Thorough knowledge of the regulations under CFR 49 Part 1542 and current Airport Security 

guidelines and practices. 

 Thorough knowledge of laws and rules & regulations governing law enforcement activities at the 

Airport. 

 Good knowledge of FAR Part 139 and airport operations and regulatory agencies. 

 Ability to deal persuasively and effectively with the general public, outside agencies and public 

officials in a manner conducive to cooperative relationships. 

 Ability to analyze information gathered for the purposes of developing recommendations and/or 

making decisions. 

 Ability to prepare detailed and complex correspondence for the purposes of explaining and 

supporting the Authority’s decisions and recommendations. 

 Ability to supervise one or more full-performance level professional, paraprofessional, and/or 

clerical employees 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS 

 Graduation from a regionally accredited college or university or one accredited by the New York 

State Board of Regents to grant degrees with a baccalaureate degree; and, 

 Ten (10) years of work experience, or its part time equivalent, as: a sworn police officer or peace 

officer in New York State; a NYS corrections officer; a federal agency officer; a military police 

officer; or a comparable position in the public or private security industry, at least five (5) of 

which involved supervisory responsibility 

- or- 

 Twenty (20) years of work experience, or its part time equivalent, as: a sworn police 

officer or peace officer in New York State; a NYS corrections officer; a federal agency 

officer; a military police officer; or a comparable position in the public or private security 

industry, at least ten (10) of which involved supervisory responsibility. 

 

NOTE: Successful completion of graduate semester credit hours in Public or Business 

Administration, Law, or a closely related field from a regionally accredited college or university may 

be substituted for specialized work experience (but not supervisory experience) as follows: Thirty 

(30) graduate semester hours is equivalent to one (1) year of specialized work experience; sixty (60) 



DIRECTOR OF AIRPORT SECURITY 

(Syracuse Regional Airport Authority) 

3 (v3.1, Draft, 2017-02-16) 

credit hours is equivalent to two (2) years of specialized work experience. 

 
SPECIAL NECESSARY REQUIREMENTS 

 Possession of a valid New York State driver’s license at time of appointment. 

 Successfully pass criminal history background check and threat assessment to receive SIDA 

badge. 

 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



   

{H3064941.1}  

Resolution No. __    2017 

 

RESOLUTION APPROVING REIMBURSEMENT OF AIRPORT 

OPERATING EXPENSES OF THE CITY OF SYRACUSE AND 

AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF REIMBURSEMENT AMOUNTS TO 

CITY OF SYRACUSE 

 

 

WHEREAS, Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York, 2011 (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Enabling Act”) added a new Title 34 to Article 8 of New York Public Authorities Law which 

created and established the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the "Authority") and granted it 

powers to operate, maintain and improve the Syracuse Hancock International Airport (the 

“Airport”); and 

WHEREAS, by Resolution 27 of 2016 the Board of the Authority previously approved 

the Authority’s entering into an agreement (the “Reimbursement Agreement”) for the 

reimbursement of the City of Syracuse (“City”) by the Authority in connection with the 

settlement of an unfair labor practices charge commenced by the Syracuse Police Benevolent 

Association (“PBA”) against the City for events which occurred prior to the Operating Date;1 

and   

WHEREAS, both Resolution 27 of 2016 and the Reimbursement Agreement authorized 

the current payment of a sum not to exceed two million one hundred eighty six thousand two 

hundred seventy-eight dollars and twenty cents ($2,186,278.20) for lost wages during the Award 

Period (the “Wages Amount”) plus the additional sum not to exceed eight hundred thirteen 

thousand seven hundred twenty-one dollars and eighty cents ($813,721.80) in related payroll 

taxes and associated expenses, inclusive of any retirement contributions as the latter may be 

finally determined by the New York State Comptroller’s Office (the “Additional Taxes and 

                                                 
1 For a detailed recitation of the facts surrounding these matters and the definition of any capitalized terms not 

defined herein, interested parties should refer to Resolution 27 of 2016 and the terms of the Reimbursement 

Agreement. 



   

{H3064941.1}  

Contributions Amount”), subject to the determination, payment and request for reimbursement of 

such Additional Taxes and Contributions Amount on or before April 30, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, by letter dated May 8, 2017 (the “Final Airport Expense Reimbursement 

Request”) the City has requested that, upon the submission of appropriate documentary proof of 

payment to the Authority, the Authority reimburse the City in the sum of $241,713.99 for the 

Additional Taxes and Contributions Amount; and  

WHEREAS, the City has advised that the Final Airport Expense Reimbursement 

Request was submitted late due to delays occasioned with the New York State Comptroller’s 

Office concerning the calculation of the Additional Taxes and Contributions Amount and has 

requested that the Authority waive the April 30, 2017 submission date as such delay was beyond 

the City’s control; and 

  

NOW, THEREFORE, after due deliberation having been had thereon, 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority hereby 

authorizes the reimbursement of the City for the Additional Taxes and Contributions Amount in 

the sum of $241,713.99.  

Resolution Adopted Date:  May __, 2017 

Vote:   Ayes: ____     Nays: ____    Abstentions: ____. 

Signed:  ______________________________________ 

     Secretary 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda













callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



{H3065330.1}  

Resolution No. __    2017 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADDITION OF A SERGEANT 

POSITION TO EXHIBIT A OF THE SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

THE CITY OF SYRACUSE 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (the "Authority") is a public 

Benefit Corporation, formed and operating pursuant to Chapter 463 of the Laws of New York 

2011 (the "Enabling Act") and Article 8, Title 34 of the New York Public Authorities Law, as 

amended; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2799-EEE (2) of the Enabling Act authorizes the Authority to enter 

into service agreements related to the operation, maintenance, and management of any real 

property and or facilities it is leasing from the City of Syracuse that are useful and vital in 

connection with the exercise by the Authority of its powers under the Enabling Act to operate the 

Syracuse Hancock International Airport (the "Airport"); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority by Resolution No. 14 of 2013 previously approved an 

Airport Services Agreement (the "Services Agreement") with the then operator of the Airport, 

the City of Syracuse, which among other things, provided for the Authority’s utilization of 

various employees of the City in connection with the Authority’s transition to and eventual 

exclusive operation of the Airport in place of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority entered into an agreement with G4S Secure Solutions, Inc. 

(“G4S”) through May 31, 2017 for security personnel services at the Airport, pursuant to which 

G4S employed Syracuse Police Department (“SPD”) law enforcement officers (“LEO’s”) with 

secondary work authorizations to provide LEO services at the Airport; and  

WHEREAS, the Authority will be entering into an agreement with Securitas Critical 

Infrastructure Services, Inc. (“Securitas”) for security personnel services at the Airport effective 



{H3065330.1}  

June 1, 2017, pursuant to which Securitas will employ Syracuse Police Department (“SPD”) law 

enforcement officers (“LEO’s”) with secondary work authorizations to continue to provide LEO 

services at the Airport; and  

WHEREAS, in the interest of providing the most effective security at the Airport and 

consistent with SPD chain of command reporting regimens, the Mayor of the City has requested 

that an SPD sergeant be stationed at the Airport as an employee of the City, to whom SPD law 

enforcement officers with secondary work authorizations would report for operational purposes, 

and that the Authority reimburse the City for salary and fringe benefit expenses associated with 

the stationing of such SPD sergeant at the Airport, pursuant to the terms and conditions of the 

Services Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority believes that the stationing of an SPD sergeant at the Airport 

as a City employee in accordance with the Mayor’s request will continue and foster high levels 

of security at the Airport, 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of the Syracuse Regional 

Airport Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into an agreement with the 

Mayor of the City to revise the job titles set forth in Exhibit A of the Services Agreement to add 

a sergeant position to be stationed at the Airport for SPD LEO operational reporting purposes 

with reimbursement by the Authority of the City’s salary and fringe benefit expenses associated 

therewith, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Services Agreement. 

Resolution Adopted Date: May __, 2017. 

Vote: Ayes         Nays:           Abstentions:         . 

Signed:                                    ___                                     . 

   Secretary 

 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda









































callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda



 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 7, 2017 

These minutes outline the activities of the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority (SRAA) Finance 
Committee from the meeting held on April 7, 2017 in the Syracuse Regional Airport Authority Board 
Room located at Syracuse Hancock International Airport. 

The meeting was called to order at 11:09 a.m. by Mr. William Fisher. 

I. Roll Call 

In attendance:  Mr. John Johnson, Ms. Beth Rougeux, Mr. William Fisher, Mr. Michael Lazar, Ms. 
Christina Callahan, Mr. Trent Amond, Ms. Jennifer Sweetland, Ms. Maureen Fogarty, Ms. Linda Ryan 
and Mr. John Clark. 

Absent:  Dr. Shiu-Kai Chin  

Approval of Minutes from the Previous Meeting 

Mr. Fisher opened the meeting with a review of the February 3, 2017 Finance Committee meeting 
minutes.  

A motion was made by Ms. Rougeux and seconded by Mr. Lazar to accept the February 3, 2017 meeting 
minutes.  The minutes were unanimously approved.  

II. New Business 

Mr. Amond reviewed the first draft of the 2017/18 Operating Budget with the Committee and stated that 
he will provide them with the second draft at the next Finance Committee meeting on May 12, 2017. 

Mr. Johnson asked Mr. Amond why the concession projection for the proposed 2017/18 budget went 
down from the amount that was budgeted in the 2016/17. He asked if the airport expected the terminal 
concession revenue to go down in the upcoming year. Mr. Amond stated that the concession category in 
the budget wasn’t just strictly terminal concessions.   He stated that there have been reclassifications in 
the past year and he would provide the Committee with additional information.  

Ms. Callahan stated that management would provide additional clarification and detail regarding 
concessions. 



Mr. Fisher asked management to also provide detail regarding the cost per enplanement passenger.  Ms. 
Callahan stated that she would get the Committee that information for their review. 

Mr. Fisher asked Mr. Amond how the Authority was progressing on reducing the fees paid back to the 
City for interdepartmental costs. Mr. Amond stated that the Authority hasn’t seen a reduction in those 
costs at this point. Ms. Fogarty stated that the Authority is close to finalizing the 2014/15 cost allocation 
study and she believes that once the 2015/16 reconciliation starts, the Authority will begin to see a 
reduction in most, but not all interdepartmental costs. The Committee discussed how the reconciliation 
process with the City of Syracuse works and what costs are included in that reconciliation. 

Mr. Fisher informed the Committee that they should submit additional questions regarding the budget to 
management before the May 12, 2017 meeting when they will review the second version of the budget. 

Mr. Amond updated the Committee on interim financing options for the Terminal Improvement project.   

Adjournment 

The meeting was adjourned at 11:50 a.m.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Mr. William Fisher 

 

 

 

callahanc
Text Box
Return to Agenda


	May 12 Regular Meeting Agenda
	April 7 Meeting Minutes Draft
	A1 - Operating Budget Summary
	B1 - Draft 2017-18 Capital Budget
	Resolution Accepting Managements Recommendation to Enter Into Project Labor Agreement For 2017 Terminal Improvement Project (H3063175x7A869) (002)
	Draft PLA Report
	32T1.132T 32TBackground32T 1
	32T1.2 The Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project32T 2
	32T1.3 Our Study32T 2
	32T1.4 Summary32T 2
	32T2.1 Scope32T 4
	32T2.2 Schedule32T 5
	32T2.3 Construction Costs32T 5
	32T3.1 Craft Labor Breakdown32T 6
	32T3.2 Projected Labor Costs32T 6
	32T4.1 Existing Agreements32T 7
	32T4.2 Labor Unrest32T 9
	32T5.1 General32T 10
	32T5.2 Labor Cost Savings Attributed to the Use of a PLA32T 10
	32T5.3 Other Economic Savings Attributable to a PLA32T 13
	32T5.4 Summary32T 13
	32T6.1 Labor Stability32T 14
	32T6.2 The “Tag Along Provision”32T 14
	32T6.3 Workforce Enhancement, Recruiting & Training Programs, and M/WBE Programs32T 14
	Section 1 Executive Summary
	1.1 Background
	1.2 The Syracuse International Airport Terminal Improvement Project
	1.3 Our Study
	1.4 Summary

	Section 2 Project Description
	2.1 Scope
	2.2 Schedule
	2.3 Construction Costs

	Section 3 Estimate of Craft Labor Needs
	3.1 Craft Labor Breakdown
	3.2 Projected Labor Costs

	Section 4 Summary of Existing Agreements
	4.1 Existing Agreements
	4.2 Labor Unrest

	Section 5 Economic Considerations
	5.1 General
	5.2 Labor Cost Savings Attributed to the Use of a PLA
	5.3 Other Economic Savings Attributable to a PLA
	5.4 Summary

	Section 6 Additional Considerations
	6.1 Labor Stability
	6.2 The “Tag Along Provision”
	6.3 Workforce Enhancement, Recruiting & Training Programs, and D/M/WBE Programs

	Tables & Appendicies Package 2017-04-14.pdf
	Tables Cover
	Table 1 Cover
	Table 1
	Table 2 Cover
	Table 2
	Table 3 Cover
	Table 3
	Appendicies Cover
	Appendix A Cover
	Appendix A
	Appendix B Cover
	Appendix B
	Appendix C Cover
	Appendix C
	End of Document


	Resolution Authorizing Executive Director to Acknowledge the Authoritys Responsibility For Contributions to PWEF (H3063364x7A869)
	2017 LTR  TO PWEF_
	Resolution Authorizing Execution of Contract to provide Airport Security Personnel Services (H3063444x7A869)
	Resolution of SRAA Board of Directors-Creating Position of Director of Airport Security 05.12.17
	Director of Airport Security Job Description
	Resolution Approving Reimbursement of Airport Operating Expenses
	Agreement for reimbursement of operating expenses attachment to resolution
	Resolution Authorizing Addition of Sergeant Position to Services Agreement (H3065330x7A869)
	Airport Services Agreement exhibit to resolution
	April 7 2017 Finance Committee Meeting Minutes-TRA Comments



